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Office of Budget and Management

John R. Kasich Timothy S. Keen

Governor Director

December 22, 2015

To the Honorable John R. Kasich, Governor;
Members of the Ohio General Assembly; and
Citizens of Ohio:

It is my privilege to present the State of Ohio’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2015, prepared in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

The Office of Budget and Management (OBM) prepared this report pursuant to Section
126.21, Ohio Revised Code. The report includes the basic financial statements, which
provide an overview of the State’s financial position and the results of financial
operations. Responsibility for the accuracy of the data presented, as well as the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with
OBM.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the information presented is accurate in all
material respects and reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the State of Ohio. All disclosures necessary for a
reasonable understanding of the State’s financial activities have been included.

This letter of transmittal is intended to complement management’s discussion and
analysis (MD&A) and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A provides an
overview of the State’s financial activities addressing both governmental and business-
type activities reported in the government-wide financial statements.

The reporting format for our CAFR is significantly different from the way the State more
typically presents its finances on a non-GAAP budgetary basis. The most obvious
difference is that the “General Fund” in the CAFR includes more than just the State’s
General Revenue Fund (GRF). The General Fund also includes other funds such as
the reimbursement-supported funds used for activities administered by state agencies
and departments for which special revenue or proprietary fund classifications were
considered to be inappropriate.



The State’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control
designed to ensure that the State’s assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Internal control is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived, and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT RESULTS

In compliance with Ohio Revised Code, an annual financial audit has been performed
by the Office of the Auditor of State. The audit was conducted in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The
auditor's unmodified opinion is included in the Financial Section of this report. This
opinion indicates there was no limitation on the scope of the auditors’ examination and
the financial statements were presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance
with GAAP.

Additionally, the State’s Single Audit report is audited by the Office of the Auditor of
State to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and
related Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133. The Single Audit
report will be issued separately from the State’s CAFR.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

History

Ohio’s first constitution was adopted in 1802, and Ohio entered the union in 1803.
Ohio’s present constitution was modified by a state constitutional convention in 1851
and has since been amended on numerous occasions. The Constitution establishes a
state governmental structure similar to the federal model, with three separate branches
of government — executive, legislative, and judicial.

Governmental Structure

The executive branch consists of the Governor and Lieutenant Governor, who are jointly
elected, and four additional statewide elected officials: the Attorney General, the
Auditor of State, the Secretary of State, and the Treasurer of State. All of these officials
are elected to four-year terms. The State Board of Education is also part of the
executive branch.



Approximately 100 departments, agencies, boards, and commissions are part of the
executive branch of government and receive appropriations from the legislature, along
with several judicial and legislative agencies. An organizational chart of state
government can be found on pages xiv and xv.

The state legislature in Ohio is referred to as the General Assembly and consists of two
separate chambers, the Senate, a 33-member body, and the House of Representatives,
a 99-member body. Each member of the General Assembly is elected to represent the
residents of a geographical district for a specified term. Members of Ohio’s General
Assembly are subject to term-limits; senators are restricted to serving two four-year
terms, and representatives are restricted to serving four two-year terms. Each chamber
has a presiding officer to call the chamber to order and direct the calendar of events.
The presiding officer in the Senate is the President of the Senate, and the presiding
officer of the House of Representatives is the Speaker of the House. A new General
Assembly is convened in January of each odd-numbered year.

Within the Judicial system, the Supreme Court is the court of last resort in Ohio. Most of
its cases are appeals from the twelve district courts of appeal. The chief justice and six
justices are elected to six-year terms on a nonpartisan ballot.

Reporting Entity and Its Services

For financial reporting purposes, the State’s reporting entity consists of (1) the primary
government, (2) component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable, and (3) other component units for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with the primary government is such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria set
forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement 14, the
Financial Reporting Entity, Statement 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations
are Component Units, an amendment to GASB 14 and Statement 61, the Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus, an amendment to GASB 14, are used to determine the
organizations for which the State is financially accountable. NOTE 1A to the financial
statements explains more fully which financial activities are included in the State’s
reporting entity.

The State provides a wide range of services and support to its citizenry that are
accounted for in the following functions or programs: primary, secondary and other
education, higher education support, public assistance and Medicaid, health and human
services, justice and public protection, environmental protection and natural resources,
transportation, general government, community and economic development, workers’



compensation, lottery, unemployment compensation, tuition credits, and other business-
type activities.

Retirement Systems

Employees of the primary government or its component units may be eligible to
participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, the State Teachers
Retirement System of Ohio, the State Highway Patrol Retirement System, or the
Alternative Retirement Plan. Further information on the State’s participation in the
different retirement systems can be found in NOTE 9 to the financial statements.

Risk Management

As discussed in NOTE 1Q to the financial statements, the State’s primary government is
self-insured for claims under its traditional healthcare plan as well as its vehicle liability
plan. Employee and public official fidelity bonding is placed with a private insurer. Tort
liability is self-funded; however, several state agencies have also acquired private
insurance. State owned buildings are covered under a catastrophic property policy for
both real and personal property losses. All other liability risk to State property is self-
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The State’s primary government and its component
units participate in a public entity risk pool, which is accounted for in the Workers’
Compensation Enterprise Fund, for the financing of their workers’ compensation liability.

Budgetary Control and Accounting System

Ohio’s Constitution requires the State to have a balanced budget. The State’s biennium
budget begins on July 1 of odd-numbered years and ends 24 months later on June 30.
The State maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the appropriated budget approved by the General Assembly. Budgets are
entered on the statewide accounting system once the appropriations bill becomes law.
Controls are maintained first at the agency level, with additional control at the fund and
appropriation level to ensure that expenditures do not exceed authorized limits.

The State’s non-GAAP budgetary financial statements are prepared on a modified cash
basis of accounting. This means that revenues are recognized when cash is received
and expenditures are recognized when cash is paid. Encumbrances, reservations of
appropriation authority as of June 30, the end of the State fiscal year, are reflected as
expenditures on the budgetary basis of accounting.

Budget-to-actual comparisons can be found in this report for each governmental fund
for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the General Fund and
the Job, Family and Other Human Services Special Revenue Fund, these comparisons
are presented as part of the basic financial statements. For other budgeted non-major



governmental funds with appropriated annual budgets, budget-to-actual comparisons
are in the non-major governmental funds section of the CAFR.

Additional discussion of the budgetary and GAAP bases of accounting is provided in
NOTE 1 to the financial statements.

The accounting system maintains all non-GAAP budgetary basis transactions and most
GAAP basis adjustments. In addition to the information obtained from the accounting
system for financial reporting, selected financial information provided by the State’s
agencies and departments is compiled to complete the GAAP basis financial
statements.

Differences between the two bases of accounting (GAAP vs. non-GAAP budgetary)
include: 1) entity differences — the GAAP reporting entity may include organizations
such as financing authorities and other component units that are not included in the
State’s budget; 2) basis differences — the GAAP basis results in the reporting of
accruals while the non-GAAP budgetary basis results in the reporting of cash
transactions; and 3) timing differences — for example, GAAP recognizes expenditures
for payables for goods and services received, whereas the non-GAAP budgetary basis
considers unliquidated encumbrances as expenditures. Reconciliation between the
GAAP basis and non-GAAP budgetary basis fund balances is presented in NOTE 3 to
the financial statements.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Economy in 2015

The U.S. economy expanded for the sixth consecutive calendar year in 2015, extending
to six and one half years the expansion that began in mid-2009. At 78 months in length
as of December, the current expansion is the fourth longest of the eleven expansions
since the end of World War Il. By a number of important measures, however, this
expansion is the weakest of the four expansions that have lasted at least as long.

Real GDP increased at an annual rate of 2.2% during the twenty-five quarters ending in
the third quarter of 2015, compared with an average growth rate of 4.6% during the first
twenty-five quarters of the three other expansions that lasted as long. GDP growth
across the last four expansions lasting at least 25 quarters has steadily declined:
average growth was 5.6% in the 1960s expansion, 4.8% in the 1980s expansion, 3.5%
in the 1990s expansion, and now 2.2% in the current expansion. Similarly, real final
sales increased at a 1.9% annual rate during the current period, compared with the
average of 4.3% during the three previous expansions. Nonfarm payroll employment
has increased at an annual rate of 1.3% in the current expansion, less than one half of



the average of 2.8% for the prior three long expansions. Real disposable personal
income has increased at an annual rate of only 1.8% in the current expansion,
compared with an average of 4.2% in the prior three long expansions.

During 2015, real GDP has remained volatile, rising at an annual rate of 0.6% in the first
quarter and then increasing 3.9% in the second quarter but slowing to 2.1% growth in
the third quarter. Major monthly indicators point to continued growth in the fourth
quarter, although manufacturing activity is slowing. Personal consumption expenditures
contributed 1.9 percentage points of the growth in real GDP from the fourth quarter of
2014 through the third quarter of 2015. Gross private domestic investment contributed
0.7 percentage points, and government spending contributed 0.25 percentage points. In
an indication of the effect of the strengthening in the dollar on trade, exports made no
contribution and imports, which are included among the other categories and subtracted
separately, subtracted 0.64 percentage points.

Growth in personal consumption expenditures was concentrated in services, with the
largest increase in health care, but spending on both durable and nondurable goods
also increased. Spending on motor vehicles and parts added only marginally to overall
growth despite the historically high pace of new auto sales because the increase in the
level has been modest. Increases in spending on nondurable goods were spread widely
across individual categories.

Investment in business equipment and intellectual property were the primary drivers of
investment during the first three quarters of 2015, accounting for more than one half of
the contribution of gross private domestic investment to real GDP. Investment in
nonresidential structures subtracted slightly from real GDP growth. In the government
sector, almost all of the contribution to growth was state and local gross investment.
Federal government spending made almost no contribution to growth.

Real personal consumption expenditures, which increased at an annual rate of 1.9%
during the first three quarters of 2015, were financed by a 3.5% rate of increase in real
disposable personal income. Real wage and salary disbursements, which account for
more than one half of disposable personal income, also increased at an annual rate of
4.1%. Approximately one-half of the increase in compensation reflected an increase in
employment and hours worked. The saving rate increased from4.7% of disposable
personal income in the fourth quarter of 2014 to 5.2% in the third quarter of 2015
because spending increased by less than income.

Inflation remained tame in 2015. The Consumer price index increased at an annual rate
of 0.5% from the fourth quarter of 2014 to the third quarter of 2015. As expected at the
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beginning of 2015, the large decrease in the price of oil has temporarily but significantly
suppressed broad measures of inflation. The underlying rate of inflation is higher, as
indicated by the 2.0% annualized increase in the CPI excluding food and energy and
the 2.4% annualized rate of increase in the Median CPI from the Federal Reserve Bank
of Cleveland.

Monetary policy remained extraordinarily accommodative throughout 2015. The Federal
Reserve continued to peg the federal funds rate near zero, but has set the stage for
beginning to raise the rate at its December meeting. In light of recent improvements in
labor markets, policy makers no longer view the extremely low rate target as necessary.
Employment growth slowed somewhat but remained solid during the first ten months of
2015, and the unemployment rate fell from 5.6% at the end of 2014 to 5.1% in October
2015. Broader measures of labor market conditions indicate ongoing improvement but
at a slower pace.

Fiscal policy continued to add directly to aggregate demand in Fiscal Year 2014, as
federal outlays amounted to an estimated 20.6 percent of GDP, compared with receipts
amounting to an estimated 18.2 percent of GDP. The budget deficit as a percent of
GDP declined for the sixth straight year, reaching an estimated 2.5 percent of GDP, but
remained large by historical standards during economic expansions.

In line with trends across the country, labor markets across Ohio strengthened further in
2015. Nonfarm payroll employment in Ohio increased by 58,400 jobs, or 1.3%
annualized, from December 2014 to October 2015. In addition, the annual benchmark
revisions to historical data released by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics in early 2015
revealed stronger growth in employment during both 2013 and 2014 than had been
previously reported. The December-to-December growth was revised up from 51,000
jobs to 76,700 jobs in 2013 and from 61,500 jobs to 72,000 jobs in 2014.

Most major sectors of the economy contributed to Ohio job growth year-to-date through
October 2015. Growth was concentrated in educational and health services (+17,800),
trade, transportations, and utilities (+17,500), manufacturing (+13,500), financial
activities (+8,200), and leisure and hospitality (+5,400). Employment declined through
October in construction (-2,400), professional and business services (-2,300), mining
and natural resources (-1,600), and government (-1,400). Private sector Ohio
employment increased by 59,800 jobs.

The Ohio unemployment rate decreased 0.7 percentage points from 5.1% in December

2014 to 4.4% in October 2015. The decrease during 2015 reflected an increase of
19,596, or 0.4%, in total employment, a decrease of 43,733, or 15.0%, in unemployed
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people, and a decrease of 24,137, or 0.4%, in the labor force. As is the case across the
country, at least a portion of the decrease in the labor force is attributable to
demographic changes that affect decisions to retire or pursue higher education.

In response to the ongoing growth in labor markets, Ohio personal income increased at
an annual rate of 2.6% in the first half of 2015. Personal income increased at an annual
rate of 3.0% across the country. Wage and salary disbursements increased at an
annual rate of 2.3%, compared with 5.0% across the country.

The six and a half year long economic expansion has produced rising state tax revenue
in Ohio. General fund tax revenues exceeded the estimate for the fifth year in a row in
FY 2015, coming in $390 million over the estimate (1.9%). Sales tax revenue was over
the estimate by $51.2 million (0.5%), but the real strength was in the personal income
tax, which exceeded the estimate by $279 million (3.4%). Through the first five months
of FY 2016, overall tax revenues are on target with the estimate, with an overage in the
sales tax and a shortfall in the income tax approximately canceling each other out.

The Economic Outlook

The economy is likely to continue expanding in 2016, despite the recent weakening in
the manufacturing and export sectors. Past expansions have been cut short by
unexpected events that have often included some mix of rising inflation, tightening
monetary policy, and an upward spike in energy costs — none of which has recently
occurred or appears likely in the near-term. Leading economic indicators that in the past
have provided some warning of oncoming recessions are instead almost uniformly
signaling growth at least at a moderate pace.

The pace of overall economic growth is projected to remain about the same in 2016.
Real GDP will expand by a projected 2.4% in 2015 and 2016, according to the
November 2015 forecast by IHS Global Insight. The Ohio economy is also expected to
grow in 2016, according to the November 2015 IHS Global Insight forecast.
Employment is projected to grow 0.9% in 2016 after a projected 1.2% increase in 2015
on an average annual basis. Personal income growth is projected to accelerate from
2.9% in 2015 to 4.0% in 2016. Nominal Gross State Product is projected to stay steady
at 3.9%.

As always, unexpected events will shape future economic performance. In the near-
term, U.S. economic growth could be stronger than previously anticipated for a time
before ultimately giving way to more moderate growth longer-term. The economy could
benefit more than anticipated in the near-term from the following:
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e Extraordinarily accommodative monetary policy, even though the Fed appears
poised to soon begin slowly raising short-term interest rates;

e The high level of corporate profits and strong corporate balance sheets;

e Further improvements in consumer confidence and household balance sheets;
and

e The substantial decrease in the price of oil, which on balance will enhance
productivity and boost spending on non-energy goods and services.

However, risks to the economic outlook include:

e A more rapid than anticipated rise in interest rates by the Federal Reserve;

e Additional increases in the foreign exchange value of the dollar and an
intensification of the economic slowdown overseas; and

e An inability of federal lawmakers to implement fiscal and regulatory policies that
foster long-term economic growth, coupled with large direct and indirect costs
and economic distortions related to recent and pending health care,
environmental, and financial services regulations.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND PROJECTS

Transforming Ohio For Growth: Stronger. Together.

Consistent with state law, the Governor’s biennial Executive Budget for fiscal years
2016 and 2017 was released in February of 2015 and introduced in the General
Assembly as H.B. 64. After extended hearings and review, the 2016-17 biennial
appropriations budget was passed by the General Assembly and signed (with selective
vetoes) by Governor John Kasich on June 30, 2015.

Among the major policy initiatives undertaken by the Kasich Administration in
conjunction with the biennial operating budget for fiscal years 2016 and 2017:

A Balanced Budget: In 2015, Ohio passed a balanced budget that was built with
continued focus on conservative economic forecasts, conservative revenue estimates
and the full allocation of funds necessary to cover our expected program costs and
obligations.

The Governor’s guiding principle was the maintenance and protection of the strong
financial position our state presently enjoys. Ohio’s enacted budget is balanced, but
also structurally balanced, ensuring that ongoing revenues are sufficient to cover
ongoing expenses.



Our strong finances and fiscal discipline have allowed us to reform our tax system,
reduce the personal income rates and small business taxes in order to improve Ohio’s
jobs climate and economic competitiveness.

Reducing Taxes on Small Businesses: The budget continues the exemption of 75% of
the first $250,000 in business income for “flow-through” businesses and then increases
the exemption to 100% for tax year 2016 (FY 2017). For “flow-through” business income
in excess of $250,000, a flat tax of 3% now applies, rather than the higher marginal tax
rates under prior law. These provisions are beneficial to many small businesses that
receive flow through income that is taxed under personal income tax.

Lower Income Taxes, Again: Personal income tax rates will be cut for all Ohio taxpayers
by 6.3 percent. This means Ohio’s top marginal income tax rate will have been cut from
5.925 percent when Gov. Kasich came into office in 2011 to 4.997 percent in 2016. With
the $1.9 billion in net tax cuts in this budget, Ohio will have reduced taxes by
approximately $5 billion during the past five years. The personal income tax rates are at
the lowest level since 1982.

Continued Strong Support for K-12 Education: For the second straight budget, Ohio will
significantly increase funding to K-12 education — providing record funding for K-12
education. Additionally, by building on a practice Kasich first proposed two years ago
and giving greater consideration to the income of local residents, Ohio will more
effectively drive state support to school districts with a series of carefully targeted aid
categories.

Making College More Affordable: The budget will freeze tuition at two- and four-year
state-supported schools, assuring that Ohio remains a leader in holding down the
growth of tuition and general fees. A new nine-member Task Force on Affordability and
Efficiency is working to help public colleges and universities examine ways to reduce
costs. Following the work of the Task Force, Ohio’s public colleges and universities will
conduct an efficiency review to improve efficiencies and reduce costs.

Better Support for Ohioans with Disabilities: The budget makes historic new
investments to ensure that every Ohioan with a developmental disability who wants to
live and work in the community can do so. This budget invests $286 million over two
years to increase home- and community-based services, support community work
opportunities and create new options for individuals who want to leave institutions.

Combating Infant Mortality: It is not acceptable that each year more than 1,000 Ohio
babies die before their first birthday. Ohio has one of the worst infant mortality rates in




the country. The budget provides enhanced maternal services through Medicaid health
plans for every woman living in neighborhoods most at risk for poor infant health
outcomes. Working to engage local community leaders, health plans will connect
women in high-risk neighborhoods to health care services.

Transforming Welfare: The budget creates a person-centered case management
system where services are wrapped around an individual’s needs in order to better
support them as they move toward self-sufficiency. New initiatives will initially focus on
those ages 16-24 in order to have the greatest impact and prevent the poverty cycle at
an early age. To help in the effort, the budget also works to soften the benefit “cliffs” by
allowing families to keep subsidized child care on a gradually reducing scale up to 300
percent of the federal poverty level.

Reducing Recidivism and Treating Addition in Ohio’s Prisons: Approximately 80 percent
of Ohio’s prison inmates have past histories of drug and alcohol addiction and those
who don’t overcome their addiction have a higher likelihood of re-entering prison after
their release. By leveraging the clinical expertise of the Department of Mental Health
and Addiction Services, Ohio can get inmates the help they need to overcome their
addiction while they are serving their sentences and provide a seamless transition of
services and supports to ensure sustained recovery after their release. In addition, the
state will begin transferring low-level, non-violent inmates with addictions to serve their
short-term sentence in a community treatment facility

Raining Day Fund Grows: At the end of FY15, the Budget Stabilization Fund (BSF)
balance was increased to just over $2 billion or approximately 6.4% of FY15 GRF
revenues. A provision in the operating budget bill raised the statutory BSF ceiling from
5% of the prior year's GRF revenues to 8.5% of revenues.

The BSF is Ohio’s rainy day savings account, a reserve balance set aside in good
economic times to protect the State’s budget from cyclical changes in revenues and
expenditures should the economy become weakened unexpectedly.

Mid-Biennium Review: During Fiscal Year 2016, the Office of Budget and Management
is leading state agencies through a Mid-Biennium Review (MBR) process, a thorough
analysis of state agency budgets, operations and programs. The Kasich Administration
initiated the first MBR process in 2012, and the two previous MBRs produced hundreds
of recommendations for efficiencies and reforms to reduce the cost of government and
revitalize Ohio’s ability to keep and attract jobs.

Xi



Capital Budget: Early in 2016, the Governor is expected to introduce his capital budget
proposal for the 2017 and 2018 fiscal biennium, identifying spending priorities to
maintain and improve the state’s educational and public service infrastructure in ways
that help keep Ohio a leader in the competitive world economy.
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable John Kasich, Governor
State of Ohio
Columbus, Ohio

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of Ohio (the State), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing,
implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the

financial statements of the following organizations which reflect the percentages of total assets and
expenditures/expenses/deductions indicated for the related opinion units:

Percent of Opinion
Unit’s Total
Opinion Unit Organization Expenditures
Assets |[Expenses
/Deductions
GoXer_n_mental Treasurer of State Lease Rental Special Obligations 0% 1%
ctivities
Business-Type . , . . . 0 0
Activities (BTA) Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and Tuition Trust Authority 94% 40%
BTA/ Workgrs Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation 100% 100%
Compensation
Agareqate Bowling Green State University; Central State University; Cleveland
goreg State University; Columbus State Community College; JobsOhio; Kent
Discretely . AU ; " . ) L .
State University; Miami University; Ohio State University; Ohio
Presented . itv: Sh . I . . £ AKron: ! . 88% 91%
Component Un|v¢r3|_ty, S_ awnee S_tate University; Unl_versny 0 ron; U_mversnty
: of Cincinnati; University of Toledo; Wright State University; and
Units : .
Youngstown State University.
Adaregate Police and Fire Pension Fund, Public Employees Retirement System,
R(gar%ai%in School Employees Retirement, State Highway Patrol Retirement
9 System, State Teachers Retirement System, State Treasury Asset 97% 83%
Fund . . 2
Information Re_s_erve of Ohio, Tr_easurer of $tate Lease Renta_LI Special Obligations,
Tuition Trust Authority, and Variable College Savings Plan.

88 East Broad Street, Tenth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506
Phone: 614-466-3402 or 800-443-9275

www.ohioauditor.gov
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Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amount included for these independently audited organizations, is based solely
on the report of other auditors. We audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the financial audit standards in the Comptroller General of the United
States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require us to plan and perform the audit to
reasonably assure the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The other auditors
audited the financial statements of JobsOhio, which represents six percent of the total assets and seven
percent of the total expenses of the aggregate discretely presented component units, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and not in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The procedures
selected depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider internal control
relevant to the State's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to the extent needed to opine on the
effectiveness of the State's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of management’s accounting policies and the reasonableness of
their significant accounting estimates, as well as our evaluation of the overall financial statement
presentation.

We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Ohio, as of June 30, 2015, and the
respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparisons for the General and Job, Family and Other Human Services funds thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2015, the State
adopted Governmental Accounting Standards No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, Statement
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27
and Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement
Date. We did not modify our opinion regarding this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to
include Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedules for Infrastructure Assets Accounted for using
the Modified Approach, and Schedules of Net Pension Liability and Employer Contributions listed in the
table of contents, to supplement the basic financial statements. Although this information is not part of the
basic financial statements, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, consisting of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, to the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
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obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not opine or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to opine or
provide any other assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted to opine on the State of Ohio’s basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section, the financial section’s combining statements, individual fund statements and
schedules, and the statistical section information present additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The statements and schedules are management’s responsibility, and derive from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. We subjected
this information to the auditing procedures applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling this information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, this information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not subject the introductory section and statistical section information to the auditing procedures
applied to the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or any other
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22,
2015, on our consideration of the State’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. That report describes the scope of our internal control testing over financial reporting and
compliance, and the results of that testing, and does not opine on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the State’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

)

Dave Yost
Auditor of State
Columbus, Ohio

December 22, 2015


srbabbitt
Yost Signature
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State of Ohio

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015
(Unaudited)

Introduction

This section of the State of Ohio’s annual financial report presents management’s discussion and analysis of the
State’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The management’s discussion and
analysis section should be read in conjunction with the preceding transmittal letter and the State’s financial state-
ments, which follow.

Financial Highlights

Government-wide Financial Statements

During fiscal year 2015, net position of the State’s primary government decreased by $1.6 billion, and ended fiscal
year 2015 with a balance of $28.6 billion. Net position of the State’s component units decreased by $5.14 billion,
and ended fiscal year 2015 with a balance of $9.56 billion. See additional discussion beginning on page 8.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $13.43 billion that was comprised of $129.8
million in nonspendable, $8.89 billion restricted for specific purposes, $1.41 billion committed, $2.57 billion in as-
signed, and $410.9 million in unassigned. See additional discussion beginning on page 11.

As of June 30, 2015, the General Fund’s fund balance was approximately $5 billion, including $49.7 million in
nonspendable, $1.15 billion in restricted, $803.6 million in committed, $2.59 billion in assigned, and $411.2 million
in unassigned. The General Fund’s fund balance decreased by $688.2 million (exclusive of a $3.6 million de-
crease in inventories) or 12.1 percent during fiscal year 2015. See additional discussion beginning on page 12.

Proprietary funds reported net position of $9.28 billion, as of June 30, 2015, an increase of $337.6 million since
June 30, 2014. This increase is largely due to the net increase of $590.5 million in the Unemployment Compen-
sation Fund. See additional discussion beginning on page 13.

Capital Assets

The carrying amount of capital assets for the State’s primary government increased to $26.73 billion at June 30,
2015. The majority of the $754.4 million increase during fiscal year 2015 was from the acquisition of machinery
and equipment and construction-in-progress projects. See additional discussion beginning on page 14.

Long-Term Debt — Bonds and Notes Payable and Certificates of Participation Obligations

Overall, the carrying amount of total long-term debt for the State’s primary government decreased $33.8 million or
.2 percent during fiscal year 2015, for an ending balance of $17.7 billion. During the year, the State issued, at
par, $1.37 billion of long-term debt of which $316.9 million was refunding bonds. See additional discussion be-
ginning on page 15.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three required components: management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial
statements, including the accompanying notes to the financial statements, and required supplementary infor-
mation. In addition, this report includes an optional section that contains combining statements and schedules for
the nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and nonmajor discretely presented
component unit funds.

The basic financial statements are comprised of the government-wide financial statements and fund financial
statements. The figure on the following page summarizes the major features of these statements.



Major Features of the State of Ohio’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Fund Statements

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire State govern- The activities of the Activities the State op- Instances in which the
ment (except fiduciary State that are not pro- erates similar to private State is the trustee or
funds) and the State’s prietary or fiduciary, businesses, such as the agent for someone
component units such as general gov- workers’ compensation else’s resources
ernment, transportation, insurance program,
justice and public pro- lottery, tuition credit
tection, etc. program, etc.
Required o Statement of ¢ Balance Sheet ¢ Statement of o Statement of
Financial Net Position e Statement of Net Position Fiduciary Net Position
Statements e Statement of Revenues, o Statement of o Statement of Changes
Activities Expenditures and Revenues, Expenses in Fiduciary
Changes in Fund and Changes in Net Position
Balances Fund Net Position
o Statement of
Cash Flows
Accounting Accrual accounting Modified accrual ac- Accrual accounting and Accrual accounting and
Basis and and economic re- counting and current economic resources economic resources
Measurement sources focus financial resources fo- focus focus
Focus cus
Type of All assets and liabili- Only assets expected to All assets and liabilities, All assets and liabilities,
asset/liability ties, both financial and be used up and liabili- both financial and capi- both financial and capi-
information capital, and short-term ties that come due dur- tal, and short-term and tal, and short-term and
and long-term ing the year or soon long-term long-term
thereafter; no capital
assets included
Type of All revenues and ex- Revenues for which All revenues and ex- All revenues and ex-
inflow/outflow penses during the cash is received during penses during the year, penses during the year,
information year, regardless of or soon after the end of regardless of when cash regardless of when cash

when cash is received
or paid

the year; expenditures
when goods or services
have been received and
payment is due during
the year or soon there-
after

is received or paid

is received or paid

Government-wide Financial Statements — Reporting the State as a Whole

The two government-wide financial statements, prepared on a basis and focus similar to those used by private-
sector companies, report the State’s net position and how it has changed. Net position — the difference between
the State’s assets/deferred outflows of resources and liabilities/deferred inflows of resources — is one way to
measure the State’s financial health, or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the State’s net position
indicate whether its financial health has improved or deteriorated, respectively. However, a reader should con-
sider additional nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the State’s economic indicators and the condition of the
State’s highway system, when assessing the State’s overall financial status.

These statements, found on pages 20 through 23 of this report, are divided into three categories as follows.

Governmental Activities — Most of the State’s basic services are reported under this category, such as primary,
secondary and other education, higher education support, public assistance and Medicaid, and transportation.
Taxes, federal grants, and charges for services, fees, fines and forfeitures finance most of these activities.

Business-type Activities — The State charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of certain services it pro-
vides. The State reports the following programs and activities as business-type: workers’ compensation insur-
ance program, lottery operations, unemployment compensation program, guaranteed college tuition credit pro-
gram, and the Auditor of State’s governmental auditing and accounting services.

Component Units — The State presents the financial activities of the Ohio Facilities Construction Commission,
Ohio State University, and other entities as discretely presented component units under a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements. The Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority is presented as a
blended component unit with its activities blended and included under governmental activities. Although legally
separate, the State is financially accountable for its component units. For further explanation and a complete list
of component units, see NOTE 1A. to the financial statements.



Fund Financial Statements — Reporting more detail about the State’s most significant funds

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregat-
ed for specific activities or objectives. State law and bond covenants mandate the use of some funds. The Ohio
General Assembly establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that
the State is properly using certain taxes and grants. The State employs fund accounting to ensure and demon-
strate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The basic fund financial statements can be found on
pages 24 through 45 of this report while the combining fund statements and schedules can be found on pages
157 through 233. The State has the following three kinds of funds:

Governmental Funds — Most of the State’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on
how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out (i.e., near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources) and the balances remaining at year-end that are available for spending
(i.e., balances of spendable resources). Consequently, the governmental fund financial statements provide a de-
tailed short-term view that helps the financial statement reader determine whether there are more or fewer finan-
cial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the State’s programs. Because these statements do
not encompass the long-term focus of the government-wide statements, a reconciliation schedule, which follows
each of the governmental fund financial statements, explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

The State’s governmental funds include the General Fund, Job, Family and Other Human Services Special Reve-
nue Fund, and the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund, all of
which are considered major funds. Data from the other governmental funds, which are classified as nonmajor
funds, are combined into an aggregated presentation under a single column on the basic governmental fund fi-
nancial statements. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

For budgeted governmental funds, the State also presents budgetary comparison statements and schedules in
the basic financial statements and combining statements, respectively, to demonstrate compliance with the ap-
propriated budget. The State’s budgetary process is explained further in NOTE 1D. to the financial statements.

Proprietary Funds — Services for which the State charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Financial statements for the proprietary funds, which are classified as enterprise funds, provide both long-
and short-term financial information.

Presented under separate columns on the three statements is information for the Workers’ Compensation, Lottery
Commission, and Unemployment Compensation enterprise funds, all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the other enterprise funds, which are classified as nonmajor funds, are combined into an aggregated
presentation under a single column on the statements. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor proprie-
tary funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The enterprise funds are the same as the State’s business-type activities reported in the government-wide finan-
cial statements, but the proprietary fund financial statements provide more detail and additional information, such
as information on cash flows.

Fiduciary Funds — The State is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that — because of a trust arrangement — can
only be used for the trust beneficiaries. The State is responsible for ensuring the assets reported in these funds
are used for their intended purposes. The State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, Variable
College Savings Plan Private-Purpose Trust Fund, STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund, and the agency funds are
presented on two statements. Fiduciary information is excluded from the government-wide financial statements
because the State cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

Discretely Presented Component Unit Statements (Component Unit)

Following the fund financial statements, the State includes statements for its major discretely presented compo-
nent units within the basic financial statements section. Nonmajor discretely presented component units are also
presented in aggregation under a single column in the component unit financial statements and in combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The basic financial statements section includes notes that more fully explain the information in the government-
wide and fund financial statements; the notes provide more detailed data that are essential to a full understanding
of the data presented in the financial statements. The notes can be found on pages 50 through 139 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information
Following the notes is a section of required supplementary information that discusses the assessed condition and
estimated and actual maintenance and preservation costs of the state’s highway and bridge infrastructure assets
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that are reported using the modified approach. Limited in application to a government’s infrastructure assets, the
modified approach provides an alternative to the traditional recognition of depreciation expense. Also displayed in
the required supplementary information are various schedules disclosing the State’s share of pension obligation,
employer contributions required as compared to employer contributions actually paid, and covered payroll, for the
various retirement systems in which the State participates. Required supplementary information can be found on
pages 142 through 153 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE AS A WHOLE

Net Position. During fiscal year 2015, as shown in the table below, the combined net position of the State’s pri-
mary government decreased by $1.6 billion or 5.3 percent. Net position reported for governmental activities de-
creased approximately $1.94 billion or 9.1 percent, compared to the net position on July 1, 2014, and business-
type activities increased $337.6 million, or 3.8 percent. Condensed financial information derived from the State-
ment of Net Position for the primary government is presented in the following table.

Net Position
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014
(dollars in thousands)

As of June 30, 2015 As of June 30, 2014
Govern- Business- Total Gowvern- Business- Total
mental Type Primary mental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government
Current and Other Assets .................... $ 19,678,811 $ 30,420,334 $ 50,099,145 $ 19,472,327 $ 31,711,462 $ 51,183,789
Capital Assets........cccvevviiiiiiiiiiiinin. 26,557,340 172,559 26,729,899 25,830,292 145,162 25,975,454
Total Assets.........ccueviiiiiiiiiiiiiinne. 46,236,151 30,592,893 76,829,044 45,302,619 31,856,624 77,159,243
Deferred Outflows of Resources............. 4,948,308 22,899 4,971,207 4,689,267 - 4,689,267
Current and Other Liabilities 8,404,517 546,924 8,951,441 7,901,435 41,297 7,942,732
Noncurrent Liabilities..............c...cooeeunee. 21,260,737 20,786,417 42,047,154 18,623,285 22,874,605 41,497,890
Total Liabilities............cooeeveeiiiniinnn. 29,665,254 21,333,341 50,998,595 26,524,720 22,915,902 49,440,622
Deferred Inflows of Resources................ 2,201,389 4,086 2,205,475 2,212,211 - 2,212,211
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets....... 23,396,447 159,466 23,555,913 22,627,911 129,804 22,757,715
Restricted.........oocoviiiiiiiiii 5,102,120 9,282,213 14,384,333 4,455,723 9,481,597 13,937,320
Unrestricted...........ocooiiiiiiiiiiiis (9,180,751) (163,314) (9,344,065) (5,828,679) (670,679) (6,499,358)
Total Net Position......................... $ 19,317,816 $ 9,278,365 $ 28,596,181 $ 21,254,955 $§ 8,940,722 $ 30,195,677

As of June 30, 2015, the primary government’s net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastruc-
ture, and construction-in-progress) was $23.56 billion. Restricted net position was approximately $14.38 billion,
resulting in a $9.34 billion deficit. Net position is restricted when constraints placed on their use are either 1) ex-
ternally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 2) legally im-
posed through constitutional or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does
not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets”. The State’s Budget Stabilization Fund
balance of $1.48 billion at June 30, 2015, is included within unrestricted net position.

The government-wide Statement of Net Position reflects a $9.18 billion deficit for unrestricted governmental activi-
ties, which is primarily attributable to the following two reasons:

(1) The State of Ohio, like many other state governments, issues general and special obligation debt, the pro-
ceeds of which benefit local governments and component units. The proceeds are used to build facilities for pub-
lic-assisted colleges and universities and local school districts and finance infrastructure improvements for local
governments. The policy of selling general obligation and special obligation bonds for these purposes has been
the practice for many years. Of the $11.06 billion of outstanding general obligation and special obligation debt at
June 30, 2015, $8.1 billion is attributable to debt issued for state assistance to component units (Ohio Facilities
Construction Commission and the colleges and universities) and local governments. The balance sheets of com-
ponent unit and local government recipients reflect ownership of the related constructed capital assets without the
burden of recording the debt. Unspent proceeds related to these bond issuances are included on the Statement
of Net Position as restricted net position. By issuing such debt, the State is left to reflect significant liabilities with-
out the benefit of recording the capital assets constructed with the proceeds from the debt issuances.

(2) During fiscal year 2015, the State implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting
for Pension Plans, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension, and GASB State-
ment No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date (an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 68), related to the measurement and reporting of the annual costs and long-term obligations
associated with the pension benefits provided to State employees. These new standards require the State to
record a proportionate share of the net pension liability of the associated pension plans. As a result of implement-
ing these standards, the State is reporting a net pension asset, net pension liability, deferred outflows of re-
sources, and deferred inflows of resources related to pension on the accrual basis of accounting. This implemen-



tation also had the effect of restating net position at June 30, 2014 (See NOTES 2, 9, 14, 15, and 18 for more in-
formation).

Condensed financial information derived from the Statement of Activities, which reports how the net position of
the State’s primary government changed during fiscal years 2015 and 2014, follows.

Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

(dollars in thousands)

Fiscal Year 2015 Fiscal Year 2014
Govern- Business- Total Govern- Business- Total
mental Type Primary mental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government
Program Revenue:
Charges for Senvices, Fees,
Fines and Forfeitures .... $ 4,220,431 $ 7,020,251 $ 11,240,682 $ 4,225,067 $ 6,709,764 $ 10,934,831
Operating Grants, Contributions and
Restricted Investment Income/ (loss).......... 23,965,473 609,269 24,574,742 21,454,316 3,398,375 24,852,691
Capital Grants, Contributions and
Restricted Investment Income/ (loss).......... 1,398,463 - 1,398,463 1,523,237 - 1,523,237
Total Program Revenues......................... 29,584,367 7,629,520 37,213,887 27,202,620 10,108,139 37,310,759
General Revenues:
General TaXeS.......ccuuueiiiiieeiiiiiaeeeiiieeeeeiiinns 23,526,620 - 23,526,620 22,126,159 - 22,126,159
Taxes Restricted for Transportation................ 1,827,134 - 1,827,134 1,782,437 - 1,782,437
Tobacco Settlement...................... 284,267 - 284,267 362,472 - 362,472
Escheat Property.................... 220,486 - 220,486 192,184 - 192,184
Unrestricted Investment Income... 36,462 5 36,467 1,733 3 1,736
Other.....ccoiiieiiiiieeiieceie 275 - 275 839 11 850
Total General Revenues.. 25,895,244 5 25,895,249 24,465,824 14 24,465,838
Total Revenue........c...oveeiiviiieiiiiieeeiians 55,479,611 7,629,525 63,109,136 51,668,444 10,108,153 61,776,597
Expenses:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education....... 12,767,328 - 12,767,328 12,287,325 - 12,287,325
Higher Education Support...............c.c....... 2,536,850 - 2,536,850 2,474,851 - 2,474,851
Public Assistance and Medicaid.. 28,265,942 - 28,265,942 25,283,157 - 25,283,157
Health and Human Senvices........ 1,576,185 - 1,576,185 1,579,156 - 1,579,156
Justice and Public Protection........................ 3,210,965 - 3,210,965 3,385,337 - 3,385,337
Environmental Protection and
Natural Resources............ccccceeveiiniieeninnnn, 507,889 - 507,889 419,539 - 419,539
Transportation............ 2,660,362 - 2,660,362 2,706,248 - 2,706,248
General Government 921,426 - 921,426 835,785 - 835,785
Community and Economic Development........ 3,518,678 3,518,678 3,448,735 3,448,735
Interest on Long term Debt
(excludes interest charged as
Program €XpPenSe).............cveeevuuneeinnnnannnn. 102,980 - 102,980 103,283 - 103,283
Workers' Compensation.............ccceeevveennnnnnns - 2,533,883 2,533,883 - 2,417,674 2,417,674
Lottery Commission............. - 2,724,306 2,724,306 - 2,310,169 2,310,169
Unemployment Compensation.. - 1,034,060 1,034,060 - 1,444,870 1,444,870
Tuition Trust Authority.... - 71,801 71,801 - 72,215 72,215
Office of Auditor of State. - 70,032 70,032 - 70,586 70,586
Total EXpENnses...........ccevvvveiiiiiiiinennn. 56,068,605 6,434,082 62,502,687 52,523,416 6,315,514 58,838,930
Surplus / (Deficiency) Before Gains (Losses)
and Transfers..........oooieiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (588,994) 1,195,443 606,449 (854,972) 3,792,639 2,937,667
Gain (Loss) on Extinguishment of Debt. 1,276 402,562 403,838 - 281,938 281,938
Transfers - Internal Activities.............cccoceeeennnnns 1,082,061 (1,082,061) - 955,721 (955,721) -
Change In Net Position.............ccccceeiiiiiiniiiinns 494,343 515,944 1,010,287 100,749 3,118,856 3,219,605
Net Position, July 1 (as restated). 18,823,473 8,762,421 27,585,894 21,154,206 5,821,866 26,976,072
Net Position, June 30............cccuuiiieiiiiniieiniees $ 19,317,816 $ 9,278,365 $ 28,596,181 $ 21,254,955 $ 8,940,722 $ 30,195,677

Governmental Activities

Expenses exceeded revenues during fiscal year 2015 for governmental activities. Revenues of $55.48 billion for
fiscal year 2015 were $3.81 billion higher than those reported for fiscal year 2014. General taxes (including taxes
restricted for transportation purposes) comprised 45.7 percent of fiscal year 2015 total revenues and increased by
6 percent compared to fiscal year 2014. Operating grants, contributions and restricted investment income, mak-
ing up 43.2 percent of total revenues, increased by 11.7 percent compared to fiscal year 2014. Expenses for fis-
cal year 2015 increased $3.55 billion or 6.7 percent from fiscal year 2014, as a result of an overall increase in the
Medicaid caseload and programmatic costs during fiscal year 2015. Fiscal year 2015 net transfers of $1.08 billion
reflect an increase of 13.2 percent over fiscal year 2014.



The following chart illustrates revenues by source of governmental activities as percentages of total reported for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Governmental Activities — Sources of Revenue
Fiscal Year 2015

Charges for Services,
Fees, Fines &

Forfeitures
Other General 7.6%
Revenue
1.0%
General Taxes
(including taxes
restricted for
transportation
purposes)
Operating Grants, 45.7%

Contributions & Restricted
Investment Income
43 2%

Capital Grants,
Contributions & Restricted
Investment Income
2.5%

Total FY 15 Revenue for Governmental Activities = $55.48 Billion

The following table presents the total expenses and net cost of each of the State’s governmental programs for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, with comparative numbers from June 30, 2014. The net cost (total program ex-
penses less revenues generated by the program) represents the financial burden that was placed on the State’s
taxpayers by each of these programs. This cost is essentially funded with the State’s general revenues from tax-
es, tobacco settlement, and escheat property.

Program Expenses and Net Costs of Governmental Activities by Program
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
(dollars in thousands)

Net Cost as Net Cost as
Percent Percentage of Percentage of Total
Program of Total Net Cost Total Expenses Expenses — All
Expenses Expense of Program for Program Programs
Program 2015 2015 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Primary, Secondary and
Other Education..........cccccoveennnn. $ 12,767,328 22.8% $ 10,853,098 $ 10,268,939 85.0% 83.6% 19.4% 19.6%
Higher Education Support.. 2,536,850 4.5% 2,512,276 2,450,561 99.0% 99.0% 4.5% 4.7%
Public Assistance and Medicaid....... 28,265,942 50.4% 6,249,536 5,979,517 22.1% 23.7% 11.1% 11.4%
Health and Human Services............. 1,576,185 2.8% 634,262 418,003 40.2% 26.5% 1.1% 0.8%
Justice and Public Protection........... 3,210,965 5.7% 1,993,353 2,174,618 62.1% 64.2% 3.6% 4.1%
Environmental Protection
and Natural Resources................. 507,889 0.9% 201,521 120,837 39.7% 28.8% 0.4% 0.2%
Transportation..........cccccveeveenenecns 2,660,362 4.7% 896,786 998,487 33.7% 36.9% 1.6% 1.9%
General Government...........cccccceeee. 921,426 1.6% 403,488 259,367 43.8% 31.0% 0.7% 0.5%
Community and
Economic Development.... 3,518,678 6.3% 2,636,938 2,547,184 74.9% 73.9% 4.7% 4.8%
Interest on Long-Term Debit............. 102,980 0.2% 102,980 103,283  100.0%  100.0% 0.2% 0.2%
Total Governmental Activities....... $ 56,068,605 100.0% $ 26,484,238 $ 25,320,796 47.2% 48.2% 47.2% 48.2%
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Business-Type Activities

The State’s enterprise funds reported net position of $9.28 billion, as of June 30, 2015, as compared to $8.94 bil-
lion in net position, as of June 30, 2014, an increase of $337.6 million, or 3.8 percent. The Unemployment Com-
pensation Fund reported a $590.5 million increase in net position during fiscal year 2015 as a result of a decline in
the unemployment rate in Ohio and consequently a decline in benefit expense.

The chart below compares program expenses and program revenues for business-type activities. Additional
analysis of the Business-Type Activities’ revenues, expenses, and other changes in net position is included with
the discussion of the Proprietary Funds beginning on page 13.

Business-Type Activities — Expenses and Program Revenues
Fiscal Year 2015

Workers' Compensation

Lottery Commission

O Expenses

W Program Revenues

Unemployment Compensation

N

Other Business-Type Activities

$0 $1,000 $2,000 $3,000 $4,000
Dollars in Millions

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S FUNDS
The State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds
Governmental funds reported the following results, as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June
30, 2014 (dollars in thousands).

As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Nonmajor Total
Other Major Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds Funds
Unassigned Fund Balance (Deficit).......................... $ 411,190 $ - $ (306) $ 410,884
Total Fund Balance.............coooiiiiiiiiiiiicieceeean 5,003,799 5,164,623 3,260,233 13,428,655
Total Revenues 34,496,350 11,171,778 9,211,914 54,880,042
Total Expenditures.............ocoveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicieeea 33,941,965 11,258,380 12,864,647 58,064,992

As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 (as restated)

Nonmajor Total
Other Major Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds Funds
Unassigned Fund Balance (Deficit).... $ 1,022,044  $ 163) $ - $ 1,021,881
Total Fund Balance.......................... 5,695,511 5,308,443 3,324,419 14,328,373
Total REVENUES.......ccviiiiiiiiei e 32,617,219 9,998,925 9,106,010 51,722,154

Total Expenditures..............cocoeiiiiiiiiiiiinii e 30,971,219 10,273,103 12,445,942 53,690,264

1"



General Fund

The main operating fund of the State is the General Fund. During fiscal year 2015, General Fund revenue in-
creased by $1.88 billion and expenditures increased by $2.97 billion. Increases of $785.6 million in sales tax rev-
enue, primarily from a rate increase and strong growth in revenues from the tax on managed care premiums for
Medicaid Health Insuring Corporations, $629.3 million in federal government revenue, related to Medicaid spend-
ing, and $496.4 million in personal income tax revenue all contributed to the rise in revenue. The increase in ex-
penditures is primarily due to increases in program spending for Primary, Secondary and Other Education and
Public Assistance and Medicaid of $452 million and $2.33 billion, respectively. Increase in Medicaid spending
constituted the largest portion of the increase in the Public Assistance and Medicaid category. Other sources and
uses showed a decrease of $268 million primarily from a decrease in bond issuance proceeds. Total fund bal-
ance at June 30, 2015 decreased by $688.2 million (exclusive of a $3.6 million decrease in inventories) or 12.1
percent. The State’s Budget Stabilization Fund balance of $1.48 billion is included within unassigned fund bal-
ance.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The State ended the second year of its 2014-15 biennial budget on June 30, 2015, with a General Fund budget-
ary fund balance (i.e., cash less encumbrances) of $4.99 billion. Total budgetary sources for the General Fund
(including $1.59 billion in transfers from other funds) in the amount of $37.71 billion were above final estimates by
$488.1 million or 1.3 percent during fiscal year 2015. Total tax receipts were above final estimates by $390.2 mil-
lion or 1.6 percent primarily as a result of the positive performance of the personal income tax quarterly estimated
payments.

Total budgetary uses for the General Fund (including $2.05 billion in transfers to other funds) in the amount of
$38.48 billion were below final estimates by $1.79 billion or 4.5 percent for fiscal year 2015. The majority of lower
than appropriated spending came from Medicaid, economic development, revitalization, and public works pro-
grams. There was no budget stabilization designation at June 30, 2014, for use in balancing the final fiscal year
2015 budget.

The main appropriations act (Act) for the 2014-15 biennium for the General Revenue Fund (GRF), the largest,
non-GAAP, budgetary-basis operating fund included in the State’s General Fund, was passed by the General As-
sembly and signed (with selective vetoes) by the Governor on June 30, 2013. Reflecting a stated focus on job
creation and continued spending restraint, and based on a conservative economic forecast, the Act provides for
GRF appropriations of approximately $31.7 billion in fiscal year 2015, a 4.7 percent increase from fiscal year 2014
appropriations.

GRF appropriations for major program categories in fiscal year 2015 reflect the following increases relative to
2014 appropriations:

e 6.2 percent for Medicaid;

e 5.8 percent for primary and secondary education;

e 2.1 percent for higher education;

¢ .3 percent for mental health and addiction services and developmental disabilities; and

e .2 percent for corrections and youth services.
The Act reflects tax reductions and related adjustments of major State taxes, primarily in personal income and
sales and use taxes. These reductions and adjustments were projected to reduce GRF revenues by approxi-
mately $771 million in fiscal year 2015. The Act also implements a new school funding formula and allocates a
portion of State public higher education funding to institutions based on their graduation rates.

Subsequent to the passage of the Act, the State Controlling Board approved an increase to federal Medicaid ap-
propriations by approximately $2 billion during fiscal year 2015. These additional federal appropriations were au-
thorized to support the federally-authorized expansion of the Medicaid program to cover those with incomes up to
138 percent of the federal poverty level using 100 percent federal funds in fiscal year 2015.

On March 12, 2014, the Governor announced a series of initiatives resulting from a “mid-biennium review” (MBR)
of the 2014 and 2015 biennium with the stated purpose of keeping Ohio moving forward. The proposals were
introduced in the General Assembly in March 2014 as fourteen separate pieces of legislation. Seven of the four-
teen bills were enacted by the General Assembly in May and June 2014 and addressed subjects of elementary
and secondary education, higher education, personal income tax reductions and adjustments, workforce, and
human services. The MBR also authorized a transfer from the GRF to a Medicaid reserve fund. Please see the
Letter of Transmittal within the Introductory Section for additional information regarding the MBR.
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The Ohio Constitution prohibits the State from borrowing money to fund operating expenditures in the GRF.
Therefore, by law, the GRF’s budget must be balanced so that appropriations do not exceed available cash re-
ceipts and cash balances for the current fiscal year.

The State ended fiscal year 2015 with a GRF cash balance of $1.71 billion and a GRF budgetary fund balance of
$1.29 billion. In addition to meeting the State’s statutory target to maintain an ending fund balance reflecting one-
half of one percent of fiscal year 2015 GRF revenues, the State transferred $425.5 million into the Budget Stabili-
zation Fund (BSF) in early fiscal year 2016. The Medicaid Reserve Fund also transferred $101.1 million to the
BSF, bringing the BSF’s cash balance to $2.01 billion by the end of July 2015.

Other Major Governmental Funds

The Job, Family and Other Human Services Fund had a fund balance of $304.3 million at June 30, 2015, a de-
crease of $36.1 million, or 10.6 percent, compared to fiscal year 2014. Federal Government revenue increased
by $1.26 billion, largely attributable to an overall increase in the Medicaid caseload and programmatic costs. Par-
tially offsetting this increase is a decrease of $87.7 million in revenue collected from license, permits and fees.

The increase in Public Assistance and Medicaid expenditures of $980.4 million is primarily attributable to an over-
all increase in the Medicaid expansion population through the federal Affordable Care Act. A $27.6 million de-
crease in net Other Financing Sources over the prior fiscal year is largely attributable to a reduction in bonds and
notes issued in fiscal year 2015 over fiscal year 2014 also contributed to the decline in the fund balance.

The fund balance for the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority Revenue Bonds Fund, as of June 30,
2015, totaled approximately $4.86 billion dollars, a decrease of $107.7 million or 2.2 percent since June 30, 2014.
Debt Service expenditures increased by $1.4 million during fiscal year 2015 as a result of scheduled principal and
interest payments on outstanding bonds. Additionally, Tobacco Settlement Receipts decreased by $6.7 million
from June 30, 2014, which resulted in the decreased fund balance at June 30, 2015.

Proprietary Funds

Major Proprietary Funds

The State’s proprietary fund financial statements report the same type of information found in the business-type
activities portion of the government-wide financial statements, but in a slightly different format.

The Workers’ Compensation Fund’s net position decreased $191.9 million to $9.27 billion at June 30, 2015. Dur-
ing the fiscal year, investment income decreased $2.5 billion, largely due to an approximately 11.2 percent de-
crease in the net return on its investment portfolio. The healthy net position brought over from the prior year was
enough to mostly offset the decreased income thus resulting in only a two percent decrease in net position.

For fiscal year 2015, the Lottery Commission Fund reported $1.07 billion in net income before transfers of approx-
imately $1.09 billion. The $40.6 million decrease in the fund’s net position to approximately $261.4 million, as of
June 30, 2015, was largely attributable to a $223 million increase in video lottery terminal commission expenses
from the opening of two new racinos and a $177.3 million increase in prizes expense connected with increased
ticket sales. In addition, the Commission transferred a record high amount to the Lottery Profits Education Fund.
Partly offsetting these expense and transfer increases was a $489.3 million increase in charges for sales and ser-
vices revenue that was primarily due to increased video lottery terminal revenue at of the two new racinos.

The $590.5 million increase in net position in the Unemployment Compensation Fund is primarily due to a contin-
ued decline in the unemployment rate. The unemployment rate in Ohio dropped from an average of 6.6 percent
in fiscal year 2014 to an average of 5.3 percent in fiscal year 2015. The decrease in the unemployment rate
caused the State’s benefits and claims expense to decrease by $419.9 million or 29.1 percent from the previous
fiscal year. While the benefits and claims expense decreased, the State also received less money from the fed-
eral government. During fiscal year 2015, the State received $17.5 million of federal funding compared to $293.9
million in fiscal year 2014 resulting in a 94 percent decrease. Contributing to the overall increase in net position is
a $402.6 million gain on extinguishment of debt (for the Federal Unemployment Tax Act credit, see NOTE 2).
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2015, and June 30, 2014, the State had invested $26.73 billion and $25.98 billion, respectively, net
of accumulated depreciation of $3.83 billion and $3.63 billion, respectively, in a broad range of capital assets, as
detailed in the table on the following page.

The total increase in the State’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for the current fiscal year was 2.9
percent (a 2.8 percent increase for governmental activities and an 18.9 percent increase for business-type activi-
ties). Depreciation expense increased 10.9 percent for governmental activities.

The State completed construction on a variety of projects at various state facilities during fiscal year 2015 totaling
approximately $216 million, as compared with $481.9 million in the previous fiscal year. As is further detailed in
NOTE 20D of the notes to the financial statements, the State had $239.5 million in major construction commit-
ments (unrelated to infrastructure), as of June 30, 2015, as compared with $172.3 million for 2014.

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014
(dollars in thousands)

As of June 30, 2015 As of June 30, 2014
Business- Business-
Governmental Type Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Land ..o $ 2,323,700 $ 11,994 $ 2,335,694 $ 2,283,721 $ 11,994 $ 2,295,715
Buildings ..o 1,556,212 42,873 1,599,085 1,567,898 49,778 1,617,676
Land Improvements ..........c...cc..... 161,190 6 161,196 168,251 7 168,258
Machinery and Equipment ............ 649,737 32,684 682,421 240,356 20,906 261,262
Vehicles .....ccoueeeeeveeiiieeeciiiiieeeee, 158,518 1,330 159,848 173,840 1,363 175,203
Infrastructure:
Highway Network:
General Subsystem ................... 8,594,583 - 8,594,583 8,568,626 - 8,568,626
Priority Subsystem .................... 8,469,414 - 8,469,414 8,455,171 - 8,455,171
Bridge Network ..........ccccceeieinenee 2,849,116 - 2,849,116 2,893,240 - 2,893,240
Parks, Recreation, and
Natural Resources System ........ 80,025 - 80,025 89,310 - 89,310
24,842 495 88,887 24,931,382 24,440,413 84,048 24,524 461
Construction-in-Progress .............. 1,714,845 83,672 1,798,517 1,389,879 61,114 1,450,993
Total Capital Assets, Net .............. $26,557,340 $ 172,559 $26,729,899 $25,830,292 $ 145,162 $25,975,454

Modified Approach

For reporting its highway and bridge infrastructure assets, the State has adopted the use of the modified ap-
proach. To use this approach, a government must maintain an asset management system and demonstrate that
the infrastructure is being preserved approximately at or above an established condition level. Under this ap-
proach, infrastructure is not depreciated, and maintenance and preservation costs are expensed. Infrastructure
assets accounted for using the modified approach include approximately 43,198 lane miles of highway and ap-
proximately 106.2 million square feet of deck area that comprises 14,229 bridges for which the State has the re-
sponsibility for ongoing maintenance.

Ohio accounts for its pavement network in two subsystems: Priority and General. It is the State’s goal to allow no
more than 25 percent of the total lane-miles reported for each of the priority and general subsystems to be classi-
fied with a “poor” condition rating. The most recent condition assessment, completed by the Ohio Department of
Transportation (ODOT) for fiscal year 2015, indicates that only 1.2 percent and .6 percent of the priority and gen-
eral subsystems, respectively, were assigned a “poor” condition rating. For fiscal year 2014, only 1.1 percent and
.8 percent of the priority and general subsystems, respectively, were assigned a “poor” condition rating.
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For the bridge network, it is the State’s intention to allow no more than 15 percent of the total number of square
feet of deck area to be in “fair” or “poor” condition. The most recent condition assessment, completed by ODOT
for fiscal year 2015, indicates that only 2.4 percent of the number of square feet of bridge deck area was consid-
ered to be in “fair” and “poor” conditions. For fiscal year 2014, 3.4 percent of the number of square feet of bridge
deck area was considered to be in “fair” and “poor” conditions.

For fiscal year 2015, total actual maintenance and preservation costs for the pavement network were $887.8 mil-
lion, compared to estimated costs of $769.7 million, while total actual maintenance and preservation costs for the
bridge network was $571.7 million, $37.1 million above estimate. For the previous fiscal year, total actual mainte-
nance and preservation costs for the pavement network were $826.9 million, compared to estimated costs of
$771.7 million, while total actual maintenance and preservation costs for the bridge network was $528 million,
$22.6 million below estimate. Overall, the State’s costs for actual maintenance and preservation for highway in-
frastructure assets have exceeded estimates over the past two years due to steadily increasing underlying costs
for the materials and labor associated with infrastructure projects.

More detailed information on the State’s capital assets can be found in NOTE 8 to the financial statements and in
the Required Supplementary Information section of this report.

Debt — Bonds and Notes Payable and Certificates of Participation Obligations

The State’s general obligation bonds are backed by its full faith and credit. Revenue bonds and notes are se-
cured with revenues pledged for the retirement of debt principal and the payment of interest. Special obligation
bonds are supported with lease payments from tenants of facilities constructed with the proceeds from the bonds.
Under certificate of participation (COPs) financing arrangements, the State is required to make rental payments
(subject to appropriations) that approximate interest and principal payments made by trustees to certificate hold-
ers.

During fiscal year 2015, the State issued, at par, $754.3 million in general obligation bonds, $218.1 million in rev-
enue bonds, $316.6 million in special obligation bonds, and $76.2 million in certificates of participation. Of the
general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and special obligation bonds issued, at par, $212.3 million, $62.3 mil-
lion, and $42.3 million, respectively, were refunding bonds. The total decrease in the State’s debt obligations for
the current fiscal year, as based on carrying amount, was .2 percent, all in governmental activities.

As of June 30, 2015, and June 30, 2014, the State had total debt of approximately $17.7 billion and $17.73 billion,
respectively, as shown in the table below.

Bonds and Notes Payable and Certificates of Participation
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014
(dollars in thousands)

Governmental Activities

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Bonds and Notes Payable:
General Obligation Bonds...................... $ 9,149,056 $ 9,366,348
Revenue Bonds and Notes 6,409,774 6,355,222
Special Obligation Bonds............. 1,906,844 1,836,136
Certificates of Participation........................ 231,837 173,603
Total Debt......cccuuiiiiiiiiiieiiiiie e $ 17,697,511 $ 17,731,309

Credit Ratings

Both the State’s general and special obligation bonds carry a “stable” credit outlook from all three crediting rating
agencies. A credit outlook is an indication of the pressure on the rating over the near-to-intermediate term and
should not be viewed as a precursor to a rating change.

The ratings and rating outlooks in effect from time to time reflect only the views of the particular rating organiza-
tion. An explanation of its view of the meaning and significance of its rating or outlook may be obtained from the
respective rating agency. Generally, the rating agencies base their rating on submitted information and on their
own investigations, studies, and assumptions. There can be no assurance that the ratings or outlooks assigned
will continue for any given time. Rating agencies may lower or withdraw a rating at any time, if in its judgment
circumstances so warrant.
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The State’s bonds and notes are rated as follows:

Credit Ratings
As of June 30, 2015

Standard &
Moody's Poor's
Investor Ratings Security and Source
Bonds and Notes Issuer Fitch Inc.  Services, Inc. Services of Funds
General Obligations Bonds:
Common Schools Capital Facilities ....  Ohio Public Facilities Commission AA+ Aa1 AA+ General Revenue Funds
Higher Education Capital Facilities ..... Ohio Public Facilities Commission AA+ Aa1 AA+ General Revenue Funds
Highway Capital Improvements ........... Treasurer of State AA+ Aa1 AAA Highway User Receipts
Infrastructure Improvements ............... Ohio Public Facilities Commission AA+ Aa1 AA+ General Revenue Funds
Coal Research and Development ...... Ohio Public Facilities Commission AA+ Aa1 AA+ General Revenue Funds
Natural Resources Capital Facilities ... Ohio Public Facilities Commission AA+ Aa1 AA+ General Revenue Funds
Conservation Projects ............cccc..o... Ohio Public Facilities Commission AA+ Aa1 AA+ General Revenue Funds
Development Ohio Public Facilities Commission AA+ Aa1 AA+ General Revenue Funds
Site Development ...........ccccccieeeeeenn. Ohio Public Facilities Commission AA+ Aa1 AA+ General Revenue Funds
Veterans' Compensation .................... Ohio Public Facilities Commission AA+ Aa1 AA+ General Revenue Funds
Revenue Bonds:
Federal Transportation
State Infrastructure Bank.................... Treasurer of State N/A Aa2 AA Grants and Loan Receipts
Pledged Receipts from the
Buckeye Tobacco Settlement B- to Tobacco Master
Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed..... Financing Authority BBB+ Caalto Aaa B-toBBB+ Settlement Agreement
Special Obligation Bonds:
Mental Health Facilities....................... Treasurer of State AA Aa2 AA General Revenue Funds
Parks and Recreation Facilities... Treasurer of State AA Aa2 AA General Revenue Funds
Cultural and Sports Facilities....... Treasurer of State AA Aa2 AA General Revenue Funds
Adult Correctional Facilities... . Treasurer of State AA Aa2 AA General Revenue Funds
Administrative Facilities....................... Treasurer of State AA Aa2 AA General Revenue Funds
Juvenile Correctional Facilities............ Treasurer of State AA Aa2 AA General Revenue Funds
Transportation Building Projects......... Treasurer of State AA Aa2 AA Highway User Receipts
Highway Safety Facilities..................... Treasurer of State AA Aa2 AA General Revenue Funds

Limitations on Debt

Section 17 of Article VIII of the Ohio Constitution, approved by Ohio voters in November 1999, establishes an an-
nual debt service "cap" applicable to future issuances of direct obligations payable from the GRF or net state lot-
tery proceeds. Generally, new obligations may not be issued if debt service for any future fiscal year on those
new and the then outstanding bonds of those categories would exceed five percent of the total of estimated GRF
revenues plus net state lottery proceeds for the fiscal year of issuance.

Those direct obligations of the State include general obligation and special obligation bonds that are paid from the
State's GRF, but exclude general obligation debt for Third Frontier Research and Development, development of
sites and facilities, and veterans compensation, and general obligation bonds payable from non-GRF funds (such
as highway bonds that are paid from highway user receipts). Pursuant to the implementing legislation, the Gover-
nor has designated the Director of the Ohio Office of Budget and Management as the State official responsible for
making the five percent determinations and certifications. Application of the five percent cap may be waived in a
particular instance by a three-fifths vote of each house of the Ohio General Assembly and may be changed by
future constitutional amendments.

The State met the requirements of Section 17 of Article VIII of the Ohio Constitution and more detailed information
on the State’s long-term debt, including changes during the year, can be found in NOTES 10 through 13 and
NOTE 15 to the financial statements.

Conditions Expected to Affect Future Operations

Economic Factors

Through October 2015, leading economic indicators continue to point toward modest, uninterrupted economic
expansion across the country and in Ohio. The Ohio unemployment rate in October 2015 was 4.4 percent, .6
percentage points below the national unemployment rate. From October 2014 to October 2015, Ohio’s nonfarm
payroll employment increased by 77 thousand jobs.
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Nationally, real gross domestic product (GDP) slowed to 1.5 percent in the third quarter of calendar year 2015,
down from 3.9 percent in the second quarter, but still up from .6 percent in the first quarter. Year-over-year
growth was a subdued 2 percent.

The national labor market outlook strengthened further in October 2015, as the level of nonfarm payroll employ-
ment increased by 271 thousand jobs. The U.S. unemployment rate for October 2015 was five percent, down
from 5.1 percent in September, and down from 5.7 percent in October 2014.

The 2016-17 Biennial Budget

The main appropriations act (Act) for the 2016-17 biennium for the General Revenue Fund (GRF), the largest,
non-GAAP, budgetary-basis operating fund included in the State’s General Fund, was passed by the General As-
sembly and signed (with selective vetoes) by the Governor on June 30, 2015. Reflecting a stated continuing focus
on job creation, and based on a conservative economic forecast, that Act provides for GRF appropriations of ap-
proximately $34.9 billion in fiscal year 2016, a 13.1 percent increase over fiscal year 2015 actual spending, and
$36.3 billion in fiscal year 2017, a 4.2 percent increase over fiscal year 2016 appropriations.

GRF appropriations for major program categories in fiscal years 2016 and 2017 reflect the following increases: for
Medicaid, 21.8 percent in fiscal year 2016 (driven in large part by the shift in funding to the GRF from non-GRF
sources beginning in fiscal year 2016 for the Medicaid expansion population), and 5.1 percent for fiscal year
2017; for elementary and secondary education, five percent for fiscal year 2016, and 4.2 percent for fiscal year
2017; for higher education, 4.5 percent for fiscal year 2016, and 3.3 percent for fiscal year 2017; for mental health
and developmental disabilities, 9.1 percent for fiscal year 2016, and 7.3 percent for fiscal year 2017; for correc-
tions and youth services, 4.8 percent for fiscal year 2016 appropriations, and 3.0 percent for fiscal year 2017. The
Act also modifies the school funding formula to distribute new resources to districts with less capacity to raise
revenues locally and freezes tuition and fees for two- and four year higher education institutions.

The Act reflects tax reductions and related adjustments of major State taxes, primarily in personal income taxes.
These reductions and adjustments are projected to reduce GRF revenues by approximately $869 million in fiscal
year 2016 and by approximately $952 million in fiscal year 2017.

General Revenue Fund

For fiscal year 2016, total fiscal year-to-date GRF receipts collected through October 2015 are $35.7 million
above estimates and $1.38 billion higher than collections through October of the prior fiscal year. Total fiscal
year-to-date GRF disbursements through October 2015 are $390.3 million below estimates for the first four
months of fiscal year 2016 and $712.9 million above expenditures for the first four months of the prior fiscal year.
As of October 2015, receipts were .3 percent above budget estimates and disbursements were three percent be-
low budget estimates for fiscal year 2016. Fiscal year 2016 receipts are 13.5 percent ahead of receipts for the
first four months of fiscal year 2015. Disbursements for fiscal year 2016 are six percent above disbursements for
the same time period of fiscal year 2015.

Budget Stabilization Fund

The Budget Stabilization Fund (BSF) is Ohio’s rainy day savings account, a reserve balance set aside in good
economic times to protect the State’s budget from cyclical changes in revenues and expenditures should the
economy become weakened unexpectedly. By law, the maximum balance for the BSF had for many years been
set at five percent of the prior fiscal year's GRF revenues. In June 2015, Governor Kasich signed a provision that
increased the authorized maximum BSF balance to 8.5 percent of GRF revenues. After depositing $526.6 million
into the BSF in July 2015, the BSF has reached a record-high balance in excess of $2 billion, the strongest re-
serves in State history.

Workers’ Compensation Fund

The Bureau of Workers’ Compensation (BWC) is in the process of transitioning its premium collection model to a
prospective payment system that will provide more flexibility for employers while reducing overall systems costs.
The change will align BWC with standard industry practice and will enable BWC to collect premiums before ex-
tending coverage. Private employers transitioned to prospective billing on July, 1, 2015, while public employer
taxing districts will transition on January 1, 2016. The prospective billing system resulted in an overall base rate
reduction of two percent for private employers and four percent for public employers and provides for increased
ability to detect employer non-compliance and fraud. Transitional one-time premium credits are planned to elimi-
nate any double payment by employers.
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House Bill 52, signed by the Governor in June 2015, allows BWC to transfer investment income from the State
Insurance Fund (SIF) to cover the cost of the Disabled Workers’ Relief Fund (One) benefits for private and public
taxing district employers rather than levying assessments against these employers. BWC management will rec-
ommend that the Board of Directors approve the use of the SIF investment earnings and will then record a $582
million liability in the SIF that will result in $582 million decrease to the net position of BWC during fiscal year
2016.

Unemployment Compensation Fund

During fiscal years 2009 and 2010, the State sought federal assistance in meeting its unemployment benefit costs
and received repayable advances in the Unemployment Trust Fund of $2.31 billion from the Federal Unemploy-
ment Account to cover the insufficient State funds for benefit claims during those fiscal years. The State contin-
ues to make principal and interest payments on these advances. During fiscal year 2015, Federal Unemployment
Tax Act (FUTA) credits of $402.6 million also offset the outstanding repayable advances. As of June 30, 2015,
the outstanding repayable advances balance is $978.5 million. More information relating to the FUTA credits and
remaining advances can be found in NOTE 2D and NOTE 14, respectively.

Contacting the Ohio Office of Budget and Management

This financial report is designed to provide the State’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a general overview of the State’s finances and to demonstrate the State’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions regarding any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Ohio Office of Budget and Management, Financial Reporting Section, 30 East Broad
Street, 34" Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3457 or by e-mail at obom@obm.state.oh.us.
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015
(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash Equity with Treasurer..
Cash and Cash Equivalents.
Investments...........ccceeeueee.
Collateral on Lent Securities....
Deposit with Federal Government..
Taxes Receivable....................
Intergovernmental Receivable............c.oooiiiiiiiiiiienicnieseee
Premiums and

AsSESSMENES RECEIVADIE. ..ot
Investment Trade Receivable
Loans Receivable, Net................
Receivable from Primary Government.
Receivable from Component Units.
Other Receivables
Inventories
Other Assets...
Restricted Assets:

Cash Equity with Treasurer

Cash and Cash Equivalents....

Investments

Collateral on Lent Securities

Other Receivables...
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net.
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated....

TOTAL ASSETS....ciiiiiiiiie s
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES..........ccccciiiiiiiiiicii e,
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES...........

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable.
Accrued Liabilities....
Medicaid Claims Payable
Obligations Under Securities Lending..
Investment Trade Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Internal Balances
Payable to Primary Government....
Payable to Component Units...
Unearned Revenue.....
Benefits Payable......
Refund and Other Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds and Notes Payable:

Due in One Year

Due in More Than One Year....
Certificates of Participation:

DUE IN ONE YBAI ...ttt

Due in More Than ONe Y ar.........ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et
Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

Due in One Year...

Due in More Than One Year....

TOTAL LIABILITIES......ooiiiiiii e
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES..........cccooiiiiiiiiicicic s
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES........

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS

$ 9,707,774 $ 74,150 $ 0,781,924 $ 448,744
183,168 981,571 1,164,739 1,672,093
1,183,268 23,911,544 25,094,812 9,758,759
2,378,044 9,260 2,387,304 106,388

— 589,867 589,867 —

1,583,519 — 1,583,519 —
1,770,653 6,545 1,777,198 48,558

— 2,852,169 2,852,169 —

— 486,154 486,154 —
1,098,085 — 1,098,085 265,029
— — — 33,374

30,508 — 30,508 —
1,180,667 331,738 1,512,405 1,275,754
102,011 — 102,011 132,750
7,358 19,132 26,490 1,896,927

— 37 37 —
374 — 374 794,654
453,382 976,369 1,429,751 2,809,651

— 180,460 180,460 —

— 1,338 1,338 —
2,541,802 76,893 2,618,695 12,890,902
24,015,538 95,666 24,111,204 1,725,311
46,236,151 30,592,893 76,829,044 33,858,894
4,948,308 22,899 4,971,207 485,190
51,184,459 30,615,792 81,800,251 34,344,084
798,261 32,021 830,282 643,253
336,324 3,238 339,562 521,688

1,899,293 — 1,899,293 —
2,378,044 189,720 2,567,764 106,388

— 637,652 637,652 —
1,112,608 115 1,112,723 17,666

654,419 (654,419) — —
— — — 19,004

33,485 — 33,485 —
425,137 2,312 427,449 484,684

— 1,384 1,384 —
766,946 334,901 1,101,847 157,838
1,193,336 — 1,193,336 952,862
16,272,338 — 16,272,338 9,751,261

32,700 — 32,700 —

199,137 — 199,137 —
142,222 3,339,747 3,481,969 563,766
3,421,004 17,446,670 20,867,674 6,901,238
29,665,254 21,333,341 50,998,595 20,119,648
2,201,389 4,086 2,205,475 4,661,198
31,866,643 21,337,427 53,204,070 24,780,846
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GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
NET POSITION (DEFICITS):
Net Investment in Capital Assets... 23,396,447 159,466 23,555,913 7,608,990
Restricted for:
Primary, Secondary and Other EQUCAtION...........cocvvvviiieeiiiie e 110,978 — 110,978 —
Higher Education Support 25,974 — 25,974 —
Public Assistance and Medicaid. 746,730 — 746,730 —
Health and Human Services.... 81,982 — 81,982 —
Justice and Public Protection..... 122,305 — 122,305 —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources.. 199,409 — 199,409 —
Transportation 3,370,828 — 3,370,828 244,206
General Government... 200,748 — 200,748 —
Community and Economic Development 243,166 — 243,166 26,106
Lottery Prizes — 66,332 66,332 —
Workers Compensation.. — 9,125,985 9,125,985 —
TUItION TrUSE AULNOTILY ...eeiuveiiiiiie e — 89,896 89,896 —
Nonexpendable for
Colleges and Universities.. — — — 3,525,095
Expendable for
Colleges and UNIVEISItIES.......cccuuiiiiieiiiie it — — — 2,932,058
Unrestricted (9,180,751) (163,314) (9,344,065) (4,773,217)
TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICITS)... -3 19317,816 $ 9,278,365 $ 28,596,181 $ 9,563,238
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES GRANTS, GRANTS,
FOR CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
SERVICES, FEES, AND RESTRICTED AND RESTRICTED NET
FINES AND INVESTMENT INVESTMENT (EXPENSE)
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES FORFEITURES INCOME/(LOSS) INCOME/(LOSS) REVENUE
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Primary, Secondary
and Other Education $ 12,767,328 % 29,382 % 1,884,848 $ — $ (10,853,098)
Higher Education Support .... 2,536,850 2,501 22,073 — (2,512,276)
Public Assistance and Medicaid .................c.c...e... 28,265,942 1,438,860 20,577,546 — (6,249,536)
Health and Human Services ...........ccccceeunvnnnnnnnn. 1,576,185 139,794 802,129 — (634,262)
Justice and Public Protection ..............ccccccvvvunnnnn. 3,210,965 1,071,484 145,977 151 (1,993,353)
Environmental Protection
and Natural ReSOUICES..........ccccevvvvverveenennnennnnn 507,889 213,376 92,931 61 (201,521)
TransSpOortation ...........ccceeeeereeieeneeieee e 2,660,362 324,553 51,033 1,387,990 (896,786)
General GOVEIrNMENL ..........uueeeiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeennnn 921,426 480,796 36,833 309 (403,488)
Community and Economic
DEVEIOPMENT. ...ttt 3,518,678 519,685 352,103 9,952 (2,636,938)
Interest on Long-Term Debt
(excludes interest charged as
program expense) 102,980 — — — (102,980)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES.........coc.... 56,068,605 4,220,431 23,965,473 1,398,463 (26,484,238)
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Workers' Compensation...........cccceevveeveeeniueeenneenne 2,533,883 1,962,587 509,882 — (61,414)
Lottery COMMISSION......cccvviriieeriieeiieeeiee e 2,724,306 3,776,450 19,096 — 1,071,240
Unemployment Compensation.............ccecveeeveeennns 1,034,060 1,228,403 611 — 194,954
Tuition Trust Authority 71,801 9,363 79,680 — 17,242
Office of Auditor of State 70,032 43,448 — — (26,584)
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES................. 6,434,082 7,020,251 609,269 — 1,195,438
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT...........cuvveee $ 62,502,687 $ 11,240,682 $ 24,574,742 $ 1,398,463 $ (25,288,800)
COMPONENT UNITS:
Ohio Facilities Construction Commission............... $ 387,544 $ 28,312 $ 2,677 $ — $ (356,555)
Ohio State University 5,286,920 4,065,308 691,209 1,688 (528,715)
Other Component Units 7,841,951 5,257,259 758,581 27,921 (1,798,190)
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS.....ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinns $ 13,516,415 $ 9,350,879 $ 1,452,467 $ 29,609 $ (2,683,460)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CHANGES IN NET POSITION:

Net (EXPENSE) REVENUE.......ccccviiiieiieieieeiese e

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Restricted for Transportation Purposes:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes..........ccccoeeenne

Total TAXES....ciereeeeieieeeeeeeeeeee

Tobacco Settlement..........cccooeieicicieiennne
Escheat Property
Unrestricted Investment Income

Gain (Loss) on Extinguishment of Debt.....
Additions to Endowments

and Permanent Fund Principal...............
Transfers-Internal Activities.........ccccooeeuane.

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES, GAINS (LOSSES),

CONTRIBUTIONS, SPECIAL ITEMS
AND TRANSFERS........cccooviiiiiiiciins

CHANGE IN NET POSITION................

NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated).....

NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JUNE 30

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS

(26,484,238) $ 1,195438 $  (25,288,800) $ (2,683,460)
8,906,476 — 8,906,476 —
10,170,995 — 10,170,995 —
2,687,540 — 2,687,540 —
808,270 — 808,270 —
953,339 — 953,339 —
1,827,134 — 1,827,134 —
25,353,754 — 25,353,754 —
284,267 — 284,267 —
220,486 — 220,486 —

36,462 5 36,467 219,984

— — — 2,425,345

275 — 275 715,705

1,276 402,562 403,838 (1,082)

— — — 100,194
1,082,061 (1,082,061) — —

26,978,581 (679,494) 26,299,087 3,460,146

494,343 515,944 1,010,287 776,686

18,823,473 8,762,421 27,585,894 8,786,552

10,317,816 $ 9,278,365 $ 28,596,181 $ 9,563,238
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STATE OF OHIO

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash Equity with Treasurer
Cash and Cash Equivalents

INVESTMENTS....ooiiiiiiiiiiii e

Collateral on Lent Securities

Taxes ReCeiVabIe ..o

Intergovernmental Receivable
Loans Receivable, Net
Interfund Receivable
Receivable from Component Units

Other Receivables

INVENTOTIES ....viiiiiiie ettt

Other Assets ..........

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES............ccocoiiiiiinns

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES...........ccceviiiiiee,

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable ...........cccooviiiiiiiii e

Accrued Liabilities.........ccouvviiiiiiiiie e

Medicaid Claims Payable...
Obligations Under Securities Lending
Intergovernmental Payable

Interfund Payable...........cccoiiiiii

Payable to Component Units

Unearned Revenue

Refund and Other Liabilities

Liability for Escheat
TOTAL LIABILIT

Property.......
IES...ccooviie

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES............ccocociiiiiiiiiinne

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):

NONSPENAADIE. ...t

RESHHCIEM. .. eei ittt

(0120114111 Yo TP PP

ASSIGNE. ...t

UNASSIGNEA. .....eeiiiiiiieiit et
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) ....ccvvviiiiiiiciiiie

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES ................

MAJOR FUNDS

JOB, FAMILY AND
OTHER HUMAN

BUCKEYE
TOBACCO
SETTLEMENT
FINANCING
AUTHORITY

GENERAL SERVICES REVENUE BONDS
5,868,009 $ 354,031 $ —
91,184 3,093 374
1,143,600 — 453,382
1,442,017 86,303 —
1,484,355 — —
1,133,497 181,139 —
996,628 — —
487 — —
247,548 465,023 431,125
21,870 — —
21 — —
12,429,216 1,089,589 884,881
— — 4,406,567
12,429,216  $ 1,089,589 $ 5,291,448
277823 $ 131,247  $ —
97,815 15,412 —
1,658,431 — —
1,442,017 86,303 —
802,234 103,054 —
478,590 13,963 —
25,708 707 —
— 370,798 —
764,507 1,744 —
236,773 — —
5,783,898 723,228 —
1,641,519 62,087 431,099
49,655 — —
1,153,828 257,096 4,860,349
803,551 47,178 —
2,585,575 — _
411,190 — —
5,003,799 304,274 4,860,349
12,429,216  $ 1,089,589 $ 5,291,448

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR

GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TOTAL
$ 3,485,734 $ 9,707,774
88,891 183,542
39,668 1,636,650
849,724 2,378,044
99,164 1,583,519
456,017 1,770,653
101,457 1,098,085
1,297 1,297
30,021 30,508
36,971 1,180,667
80,141 102,011
— 21
5,269,085 19,672,771
— 4,406,567
$ 5,269,085 $ 24,079,338
$ 389,191 $ 798,261
56,645 169,872
240,862 1,899,293
849,724 2,378,044
207,320 1,112,608
163,163 655,716
7,070 33,485
54,339 425,137
695 766,946
— 236,773
1,969,009 8,476,135
39,843 2,174,548
80,141 129,796
2,621,521 8,892,794
558,877 1,409,606
— 2,585,575
(306) 410,884
3,260,233 13,428,655
$ 5,269,085 $ 24,079,338
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STATE OF OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

Total Fund Balances for Governmental FUNAS............coooiiiiiiii i

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position is different
because:

Net Pension Assets Reported for Governmental Activities are not Financing Resources and
therefore are not Reported in the Funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are not
reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Buildings and Improvements, net of $2,172,453 accumulated depreciation.
Land Improvements, net of $310,085 accumulated depreciation.............ccccoccvereiiiiieeiieesnieeeseeen.
Machinery and Equipment, net of $773,871 accumulated depreciation.............ccccccverevervenceeenennn
Vehicles, net of $228,112 accumulated depreciation............cc.ccceevervenne.

Infrastructure, net of $31,622 accumulated depreciation....
CONSITUCTION-IN-PIOGIESS. ... .eiiiuiiiieiitieeeteie ettt e ettt e e st ee e e e e e e esbeeesbeeeaasbeeeabaeeaasbeaeasbeesanbeeeaseaaannes

The following Deferred Outflows of Resources are not related to the current period and therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

HEAGING DEMVALIVES. .....coiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e e et e e
Loss on Debt Refundings....
Net Pension Asset/Liability..................
Total Deferred OULFIOWS Of RESOUICES........cciuiiiiiiiieiiiie ettt e e

The following liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Accrued Liabilities:
INEEIEST PAYADIE. ... .eiiiiiiie ittt ettt e et e ettt e e enb e e e et aanneeeas
Bonds and Notes Payable:
General Obligation Bonds....
Revenue Bonds and Notes.. .
Special Obligation BONGS. ..........eiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et et e e s bbe e e ssteaeasbeeesnbeeesnsaeeanns
Certificates Of PartiCiPation.............uuei i
Other Noncurrent Liabilities:
COMPENSALEA ADSENCES. ...ttt e et
Net Pension LIability............uiiiiiiiiiie ettt et e st nee
Net OPEB Obligation
Capital LEaSES PaYADIE........cocuiiiiiiiii ettt
DIBIIVALIVES. ...ttt e
Estimated Claims Payable.........
POlUtioN REMEIATION. ... ..uieiiie ittt e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e abebneeaeeeannnees

The following Deferred Inflows of Resources are not related to the current period and therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Intergovernmental RECEIVADIE. ...........iiiiiiii e
Other RECEIVADIES. ..o

Total Deferred INfIOWS Of RESOUICES.......cciiiiiiiiiii e e e e e s e e e e e e nnnnees

Total Net Position of Governmental ACHIVITIES.......uiiii i e e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 13428655

7,337

2,323,700
1,556,212
161,190
649,737
158,518
19,993,138
1,714,845
26,557,340

34,675
163,743
343,323
541,741

(166,452)

(9,149,056)
(6,409,774)
(1,906,844)

(231,837)

(421,817)
(2,703,806)
(149,131)
(2,072)
(45,873)
(2,186)
(1,568)

(21,190,416)

(61,056)

(26,841)

$ 19317816



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR FUNDS

JOB, FAMILY AND

OTHER HUMAN

BUCKEYE
TOBACCO
SETTLEMENT
FINANCING
AUTHORITY

GENERAL SERVICES REVENUE BONDS
REVENUES:
INCOME TAXES....ciiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee et e eeee e e e eee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeseeeees 8,895,192 % — $ —
SAIES TAXES...cvvuieiiiiiieetee et e e e e e e e e e e eeaa s 10,166,332 — —
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes 2,597,993 — —
Motor Vehicle FUElI TaXES......cooiiiveeuiiiiiiiieeee e, 1,114,542 — —
CIgArette TAXES. . ceeiveeeeiiieeeeiiee e eiree ettt e b e neeeeenee 808,270 — —
Other TAXES....uueeeiiieiieeieee e 648,099 1,415 —
Licenses, Permits and Fees............... 734,839 1,047,817 —
Sales, Services and Charges 76,208 — —
Federal GOVEIMMENT.........oiiiiiiieiieee e 8,942,561 9,609,248 —
Tobacco SettlemMeNnt.........cuuueiiiiiiiieee e 94 — 285,822
Escheat Property 220,486 — —
INVESIMENT INCOME.....coiiiiii e 47,438 2,878 1,092
(@101 SO RNt 244,296 223,506 —
TOTAL REVENUES.........cooi, 34,496,350 10,884,864 286,914
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT OPERATING:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education.............ccccceeviieeennne 9,290,820 242 58,484
Higher EJuCation SUPPOI.........ccoiiiiiiiiiie e 2,372,521 181 —
Public Assistance and Medicaid 16,239,358 10,480,925 —
Health and Human Services.................. 587,606 315,107 —
Justice and Public Protection............uueeeeiiiiieeeeiee e 2,438,449 67,320 —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources..........ccccce..... 92,685 — —
TranSPOIAtION. ........eeiiiiiee et 9,289 — —
General Government 441,707 2,498 —
Community and Economic Development.. 2,469,530 — —
CAPITAL OUTLAY . — 11,292 —
DEBT SERVICE. ...ttt — — 322,331
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........oooiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee, 33,941,965 10,877,565 380,815
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES.........ccccoiiiiieeeiiee e 554,385 7,299 (93,901)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bonds, Notes, and COPS ISSUEM..........ccceevveeeeeiiiiiieiieee e, 460,000 — —
Refunding Bonds and COPS ISSUEd..........cccceviieieiiieeeniieee e — — —
Payment to Refunded Bond and COPs Escrow Agents............. — — —
Premiums/Discounts 48,536 — —
Transfers-in.......cccceeeeeenn. 321,156 2,226 —
Transfers-out (2,072,234) (45,673) (13,771)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,242,542) (43,447) (13,771)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.........ccooeiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee, (688,157) (36,148) (107,672)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), July 1 (as restated)...........ccc....... 5,695,511 340,422 4,968,021
Increase (Decrease) for Changes in Inventories............cccceenee (3,555) — —
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30.......cccoccvvveeeeiinnnns $ 5,003,799 $ 304,274 $ 4,860,349

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR

GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TOTAL
$ 11,067 $ 8,906,259
4,663 10,170,995
89,547 2,687,540
712,592 1,827,134
— 808,270
303,825 953,339
1,217,814 3,000,470
39,464 115,672
5,982,162 24,533,971
— 285,916
— 220,486
11,023 62,431
839,757 1,307,559
9,211,914 54,880,042
3,036,320 12,385,866
27,337 2,400,039
1,911,906 28,632,189
616,438 1,519,151
689,962 3,195,731
320,343 413,028
2,826,416 2,835,705
338,572 782,777
961,894 3,431,424
498,817 510,109
1,636,642 1,958,973
12,864,647 58,064,992
(3,652,733) (3,184,950)
650,591 1,110,591
254,590 254,590
(382,933) (382,933)
171,463 219,999
3,349,834 3,673,216
(459,477) (2,591,155)
3,584,068 2,284,308
(68,665) (900,642)
3,324,419 14,328,373
4,479 924
$ 3,260,233  $ 13,428,655
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STATE OF OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances -- Total Governmental FUNAS.........occcuviieiieiniiiiiiiene e
Change iN INVENTOMIES. .....ooiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeee e

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities is
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the
current period.
Capital Outlay Expenditures
Depreciation EXPENSE.........ccuviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeiiiiiee e

Excess of Capital Outlay Over Depreciation Expense

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. In the current period, proceeds
were received from:

General Obligation BONGS...........cuuuiiiiee it e e et e e e e e et e e e e e s s ttaaaaaeessastaaaaaaeesanssaaneeaaeaaas
Revenue Bonds and Notes
Special Obligation BONdS.............cccuvvieeeeeiiiiiiiieee e,
Refunding Bonds, including Bond Premium/Discount, Net
Certificates Of PartiCIPALION. ..........coiiiiuiiiiie e e e e e e e s e st e e e e e e e e nnnennees
Premiums and Discounts, Net:
General Obligation BONGS............uuviiiieeiiiiiie ettt e e e e s a e e e e s st e e e e e s ssntaaraaaeeaanssnnaeaaeaaas
Revenue Bonds and Notes
Special Obligation Bonds.......
Certificates of Participation

Total DEDt ProCEEAS. .......cooviiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the

repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. In the current year, these

amounts consist of:

Debt Principal Retirement and Defeasements:
General Obligation BONGS. ... ...uuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee s e sesssesssssssasssessssssssssssassssssssessseerene
Revenue Bonds and Notes.....
Special Obligation Bonds.......
Certificates of Participation....
Capital LeasSE PaymMeNtS. .....cccc i

Total Long-Term Debt REPAYMENL........ccoiiuiiiiee et e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e esnaaeeeee s

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1,026,371

(299,323)

(542,000)
(155,875)
(274,300)
(384,955)

(76,150)

(74,697)
(23,397)
(41,877)
(11,926)

997,569
227,441
270,448
26,330
983

(900,642)
924

(899,718)

727,048

(1,585,177)

1,522,771



Some revenues and expenses reported in the Statement of Activities are not reported as revenue
and expenditures in the governmental funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting
used in the governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not
normally paid with expendable available financial resources. In the Statement of Activities,
however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses, liabilities, and deferred resources
are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. In addition, interest on long-
term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather than
as it accrues. This adjustment combines the changes in the following balances:

INCrEASE IN OtNEI ASSEES. .. .uuiiiiiiiiiiiii b aa e s e aa e aaaaasaasasaasaasssassssssesssasnsnnnes
Increase in Accrued Interest and Other Accrued Liabilities
Amortization of Bond Premiums/Accretion of Bond Discount, Net.....................
Decrease in Refunding Loss Included in Deferred Outflows of Resources
Increase in Pension Related Balances Included in Deferred Outflows of Resources...................
Decrease in ComMpPENSAtEA ADSENCES. .......oiiiiieceeeeee e
Decrease in Derivative Liabilities (Excluding Hedging Derivatives)
Decrease in Estimated Claims Payable
Increase in Pollution Remediation....................

Decrease in Net Pension Obligation..............coooiiiiiiiiiii
Increase in Net Pension Liability............ooovviiiiiiiii
Increase in Liability for OPEB Obligation...............

Increase in Other Noncurrent Liabilities.................

Decrease in Deferred Inflow of Resources

Total additional revenues and eXPENItUIES. ...........ceeeeiiiiriieieeeeiiiiiriee e e e e eeirree e e e s e snrareeeeeesenee

Change in Net Position of Governmental ACHVITIES..........oocuviiiiieiiiiiieec e
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5,336
(3,508)
97,187
(9,101)
124,580
4,878
655
9,545
(18)
28,183
(51,387)
(21,030)
(193)
544,292

$

729,419

494,343



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

GENERAL

VARIANCE
WITH
FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET
POSITIVE/
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Income Taxes $ 8593359 $ 8,593,359 $ 8,872,125 $ 278,766

SAIES TAXES...uuuuuuuuuuiiiirirtiitttttrteereeeeereraeeaererssrarerraaaeaearraar—————. 10,115,425 10,115,425 10,166,655 51,230
Corporate and Public Utility TaXeS.......ccccveevevivveeeeeeeeeeiiiieennn 2,630,997 2,630,997 2,678,983 47,986
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES.......coovvvuveiiieiiiiieiee e 1,120,107 1,120,107 1,120,107 —
CiIgarette TAXES......ccuvviieeeeeeiiitiiee e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeaaees 794,100 794,100 808,164 14,064
(O] | T<T N 1= (ST T 657,169 657,169 655,360 (2,809)
Licenses, Permits and FEES........coooovviiieieiiiiiieeieeiee e, 736,103 736,103 732,330 (3,773)
Sales, Services and Charges.......ccccceevecvvieeeeeeeiiciieeee e 101,253 101,253 102,040 787
Federal GOVEINMENt.........oooiivveieeieeeeeee e 9,046,678 9,046,678 9,357,226 310,548
Tobacco SettlemMENt.........cuuvviiiiiiiiieee e 38,714 38,714 38,714 —
INVESTMENT INCOMEB.....uiiiiiiiii e 29,689 29,689 32,860 3,171
(©]1 0= S 1,410,738 1,410,738 1,395,817 (14,921)
TOTAL REVENUES........co ittt 35,274,332 35,274,332 35,960,381 686,049

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT OPERATING:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education.................cc.cceuu. 9,234,053 9,234,455 9,161,804 72,651
Higher Education SUPPOIt..........ccovoviiriieiiiiiicniecsee e 3,087,937 2,444,820 2,440,454 4,366
Public Assistance and Medicaid 17,164,441 17,156,368 16,343,325 813,043
Health and Human Services......... 794,569 794,244 716,969 77,275
Justice and Public Protection 2,553,034 2,602,786 2,487,072 115,714
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources 143,857 131,549 124,077 7,472
TranSPOITALION. .......eeiuiiiieeiiee ittt 14,585 14,585 14,290 295
General GOVEINMENT........coceiiiieiiieiie e 1,291,346 1,337,970 1,150,702 187,268
Community and Economic Development............cccveeeeeennne. 3,681,643 3,026,940 2,732,835 294,105
CAPITAL OUTLAY ..ottt — — — —
DEBT SERVICE.......coctiiiiiiiiiiie sttt 1,311,999 1,312,159 1,261,820 50,339
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES..........cccccevniene 39,277,464 38,055,876 36,433,348 1,622,528
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES........... (4,003,132) (2,781,544) (472,967) 2,308,577
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bonds and NOtes ISSUEd...........ccuvvvevieeeiiiiiiiiieeeeciieeeeen 164,764 164,764 164,764 —
TraNSTEIS-iN....ooiiiiiiiiici e 1,783,746 1,783,746 1,585,813 (197,933)
TranSTErS-0UL.....c..eoiiiiiiiiiiec e (2,217,647) (2,217,647) (2,049,959) 167,688
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)............ (269,137) (269,137) (299,382) (30,245)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.........ccccoeervienieeiieene $ (4,272,269) $ (3,050,681) (772,349) $ 2,278,332
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY L.ttt 4,813,165
Outstanding Encumbrances at Beginning of Fiscal Year..... 944,361
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30....citieiiiiiiiieeeeeeeiiiiiee e e e e esiieeeee e e e $ 4,985,177

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JOB, FAMILY AND OTHER HUMAN SERVICES

VARIANCE
WITH
FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET

POSITIVE/
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

1,415
1,011,473

6,649,148
2,878
795,779
8,460,693

$ 284 % 284 263 % 21
1,273 1,273 489 784
10,605,300 10,712,142 9,165,226 1,546,916
392,942 392,942 340,564 52,378

79,039 82,548 72,694 9,854

2,719 2,719 2,444 275

32,396 17,511 17,511 —

$ 11,113,953 $ 11,209,419 9,599,191 $ 1,610,228

(1,138,498)

185
7,836

(53,676)

(45,655)

(1,184,153)

(721,663)
1,098,254

$  (807,562)

33



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE
JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash Equity with Treasurer...
Cash and Cash Equivalents..
Collateral on Lent Securities
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity With TreaSUIEr........cccviiiiiiiiiicee e
Investments
Collateral on Lent Securities....
Other Receivables
Deposit with Federal Government...
Intergovernmental Receivable
Premiums and Assessments Receivable..
Investment Trade Receivable
Interfund Receivable....
Other Receivables
Other Assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS....

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Assets:
Investments
Investments
Premiums and Assessments Receivable
Interfund Receivable
Other Assets
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net....
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated .
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS.. ..ottt

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES...........cccooiiiiiiiiniinen e
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES...........

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNLS PaYabIe........c.oeiiiiiiii e
Accrued Liabilities
Obligations Under Securities Lending
Investment Trade Payable
Intergovernmental Payable.
Prize Awards Payable
Interfund Payable
Unearned Revenue...
Benefits Payable
Refund and Other Liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES.. ..ot

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Intergovernmental Payable....
Prize Awards Payable
Interfund Payable..
Benefits Payable.
Refund and Other Liabilities

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES. ..o

TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ot

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES..........cccooiiiiiiniicc e
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES.........

NET POSITION (DEFICITS):

Net Investment in Capital Assets....

Restricted for Lottery Prizes

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICITS).

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
$ 9,229 28,156 —
787,574 161,080 550
2,250 6,864 —
— 37 —
— 60,011 —
— 180,460 —
— 1,338 —
— — 589,867
_ — 416
11,496 — 27,815
486,154 — —
61,247 1,518 1,643
237,876 64,366 27,999
2,115 12,534 4,247
1,597,941 516,364 652,537
— 516,440 —
23,910,342 — —
2,812,858 — —
590,397 — —
227 — —
46,681 28,783 —
95,666 — —
27,456,171 545,223 —
29,054,112 1,061,587 652,537
16,679 1,770 —
29,070,791 1,063,357 652,537
21,226 9,063 —
2,250 187,324 —
637,652 — —
— — 601,317
— 61,386 —
— 1,380 —
1,752,249 — 1,384
1,119,291 54,241 8,395
3,532,668 313,415 611,096
— — 377,257
— 456,846 —
— 1,464 —
14,637,151 — _
1,630,209 29,343 —
16,267,360 487,653 377,257
19,800,028 801,068 988,353
2,431 906 _
19,802,459 801,974 988,353
142,347 15,690 _
— 66,332 —
9,125,985 179,361 (335,816)
$ 9,268,332 261,383 (335,816)
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NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL
$ 36,765 74,150
32,367 981,571
146 9,260
— 37
76,400 136,411
— 180,460
— 1,338
— 589,867
6,129 6,545
— 39,311
— 486,154
1,216 65,624
1,497 331,738
— 18,896
154,520 2,921,362
323,518 839,958
1,202 23,911,544
— 2,812,858
7,499 597,896
9 236
1,429 76,893
— 95,666
333,657 28,335,051
488,177 31,256,413
4,450 22,899
492,627 31,279,312
1,732 32,021
3,238 3,238
146 189,720
— 637,652
— 601,317
— 61,386
117 138
932 2,312
76,400 1,830,033
1,484 1,183,411
84,049 4,541,228
— 377,257
— 456,846
7,499 8,963
266,400 14,903,551
49,464 1,709,016
323,363 17,455,633
407,412 21,996,861
749 4,086
408,161 22,000,947
1,429 159,466
— 66,332
83,037 9,052,567
$ 84,466 9,278,365
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and ServiCes...........ccooiiiririierenesieese e $ — $ 3,770,156  $ 26,599
Premium and Assessment Income.... 1,954,174 — 1,155,627
Federal GOVEIMMENT.........ccccciviiiieeieeciie et eree e — — 17,533
INVESIMENT INCOME....coiiiiiiiiiiiie e — — —
OhEI ..t et e e e ae e e aeeeree e 8,413 6,294 28,644
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES........ccccoooii e, 1,962,587 3,776,450 1,228,403
53,235 120,708 —
— 693,257 —
— 1,875,258 —
Benefits and Claims..........cccocoieiieiiieiiece e 1,394,939 — 1,024,300
DEPIECIALION. .....eeuiiiiieieieeee ettt 8,790 8,637 —
OhEI ..ttt re e aeeeaeeens 1,076,919 1,093 9,760
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES......ccocoiiiieceeeeceecie s 2,533,883 2,698,953 1,034,060
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....oiueeeieieeeeeerereseeeseseeseeeenan (571,296) 1,077,497 194,343
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INVESIMENT INCOME.......oiiiiiieiiiee et 509,882 19,096 611
INtEreSt EXPENSE....coiiiiiiiiiie e — (275) —
(@117 SRS — (25,078) —
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)........... 509,882 (6,257) 611
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE GAIN (LOSS) AND TRANSFERS..... (61,414) 1,071,240 194,954
Gain on Extinguishment of Debt...........ccocoiiiiiiiiiinee e — — 402,562
TrANSTEIS-IN...eciiciece e e e ns — — —
TrANSTEIS-0UL.....cueiiiiiiiieie ettt (8,796) (1,094,488) (7,039)
TOTAL GAIN (LOSS) AND TRANSFERS.....cooovviveenereeenen. (8,796) (1,094,488) 395,523
NET INCOME (LOSS)....cvieeeieeseeeeeseeseesesseeseessees s sses e (70,210) (23,248) 590,477
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated). 9,338,542 284,631 (926,293)
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JUNE 30.....cccceiiiiiieieiesieeeeeene $ 9,268,332 $ 261,383 $ (335,816)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL
$ 52,486 3,849,241
— 3,109,801
— 17,533
(720) (720)
80,725 124,076
132,491 7,099,931
64,567 64,567
11,876 185,819
— 693,257
— 1,875,258
63,361 2,482,600
433 17,860
1,596 1,089,368
141,833 6,408,729
(9,342) 691,202
5 529,594
— (275)
— (25,078)
5 504,241
(9,337) 1,195,443
— 402,562
28,262 28,262
— (1,110,323)
28,262 (679,499)
18,925 515,944
65,541 8,762,421
$ 84,466 9,278,365
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from CUSIOMEIS. ........coieeeeeee e eeee e e e e e e e e eeea e e e e e $ — $ 3,675,876 $ —
Cash Received from Multi-State Lottery for Grand Prize Winner... — 73,121 —
Cash Received from Premiums and Assessments.. 1,968,405 — 1,179,569
Cash Received from Interfund Services Provided... . 72,798 — —
Other Operating Cash Receipts...........cccocvvervieeennnen. . 36,652 111,451 39,139
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services...........ccccocvvvernueennnen. (56,390) (87,429) —
Cash Payments to Employees for SEerviCes.........cocvvviieieiniieeniiiieniee e (189,767) (29,050) —
Cash Payments for Benefits and Claims..........ccccceevviiiiiiiiniieeniee e (1,773,525) — (923,536)
Cash Payments for LOttery PriZeS...........ccovviiiiiiiiiiieeiee e — (2,022,969) —
Cash Payments for Bonuses and COMMISSIONS.........cccueeerireeniiniiniieeenieneen — (693,257) —
Cash Payments for Premium Reductions and Refunds.............c.ccccevcvvenne (1,310,018) — —
Cash Payments for Interfund Services USed...........ccccveeeviiiiniiieeinieenieeee (25,463) (6,607) —
Other Operating Cash PaymentS...........ccceoiiiiiiiiieiiiieiee e — (547) (100,867)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES. ..ottt (1,277,308) 1,020,589 194,305
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
TranSfers-iN ..o — — —
TrANSTEIS-0UL ..ottt e e e ee e st e e naeeenneeeens (8,796) (1,094,488) (7,039)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES........cooiiiiiiiiiiiee e (8,796) (1,094,488) (7,039)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments on Bonds, Notes and Capital Leases.............cccccccuvenne — (5,932) —
Acquisition and Construction of Capital ASSetS .........ccccevvviriiieiiiieeiiieenne (25,234) (16,361) —
Proceeds from Sales of Capital ASSEtS .........ccceviiiiiiieeiieeee e 95 77 —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES........ccccovvviiieieene (25,139) (22,216) —
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESIMENTS..........ooiiiiiiiie e (17,766,017) (133,035) (1,160,976)
Proceeds from the Sales and Maturities of Investments ............ccccccevveeeennn. 18,697,992 177,071 973,529
Investment INCOME RECEIVEM ........coovieiieiiiiiiiiiee e 655,585 4,929 —
Borrower Rebates and Agent Fees.. (42,767) (275) —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES.. ..ot 1,544,793 48,690 (187,447)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS.............. 233,550 (47,425) (181)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 ..ot 563,253 236,698 731
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 .....cccceviiiiiiiiiiiceccie $ 796,803 % 189,273  $ 550

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL

36,095 3,711,971
— 73,121

— 3,147,974
10,282 83,080
9,008 196,250
(5,906) (149,725)
(66,577) (285,394)
— (2,697,061)
— (2,022,969)
— (693,257)
— (1,310,018)
(3,880) (35,950)
(66,131) (167,545)
(87,109) (149,523)
28,288 28,288
— (1,110,323)
28,288 (1,082,035)
— (5,932)
(162) (41,757)

26 198
(136) (47,491)
(291,495) (19,351,523)
352,960 20,201,552
7,823 668,337
— (43,042)
69,288 1,475,324
10,331 196,275
58,801 859,483
69,132 1,055,758
(continued)

39



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
(dollars in thousands)

(continued)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (LOSS)...vveeiureeeiirieiitieeesiieresieeesstteesseeeenneeeesseeesnseeeenneeessnnes
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
INVESIMENT INCOME.......iiiiiiiiii e e
Depreciation .........ccoceeeeiiieeeiieeens
Provision for Uncollectible ACCOUNES............ccvveiieriiiiieeeee e
Decrease (Increase) in Assets:
Deposit with Federal GOVErNMENL..........ccevueeeiiieeeeiee e
Intergovernmental Receivable.............cccoviiieiiiee i
Premiums and Assessments Receivable.............ccccooereeiicniienicnnenn.
Interfund Receivable...........ooviiiiiiicc e
Other RECEIVADIES .........ooiiiiiiiieeeeeee e
OhEr ASSELS ..ottt
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYaDIE ....covviieiiiie et
Accrued Liabilities. ........cocuiiiiiiiiiieccese e
Intergovernmental Payable............cccoveiiiiiiin e
Deferred Prize Awards Payable...........ccccoveiiiieiiiiieiee e
Interfund Payable......................
Unearned Revenue .
Benefits Payable................
Refund and Other Liabilities............ccooiiiieiiiiineceeec e
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES. ...

NONCASH INVESTING,
CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Change in Fair Value of INVeStMENtS..........c.coceviiiiniiieeiiiceeece e

Gain on Extinguishment of Debt

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION

$ (571,296) $ 1,077,497 $ 194,343
8,790 8,637 —
39,532 — —

_ — (12,851)

— — 1,384

789,298 — 4,340

4,214 — (426)

(34,637) 2,942 10,895

5,416 5,158 1,482
7,117 (2,178) —

— — (385)
— (47,082) —
— (314) —
_ (67) _

(478,800) — (4,320)

(1,046,942) (24,004) (157)

$ (1,277,308)  $ 1,020,589 $ 194,305
$ (93,020) $ 3,914,884 $ —

_ — 402,562



NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL

9,342) $ 691,202
720 720
433 17,860

— 39,532
— (12,851)
3,348 4,732
— 793,638

26 3,814
(389) (21,189)
) 12,054
(1,423) 3,516
(529) (529)
— (385)
— (47,082)
376 62
243 176
(80,400) (563,520)
(170) (1,071,273)
(87,109) $ (149,523)
— $ 3,821,864

— 402,562
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

PRIVATE-

PENSION PURPOSE INVESTMENT

TRUST TRUST TRUST

STATE HIGHWAY
PATROL
RETIREMENT VARIABLE
SYSTEM COLLEGE
(as of 12/31/14) SAVINGS PLAN STAR OHIO

ASSETS:
Cash EqUity With TrEASUIET.........ccueicuieiieeiee et stee ettt $ — $ — $ —
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS..........c.cooiiiieiiiie et 12,107 244,096 128,240
Investments (at fair value):
U.S. Government and Agency ObligationsS...........ccccveviieeeiiieesiiiee e 15,027 — 713,808
Common and Preferred StOCK.........ccooiiiiiiiii i 75,753 — —
Corporate Bonds and NOTES..........coiiiieiiieeeiiiee i 21,149 — 156,142
Foreign Stocks and BONGS.........cooiiiieiiiie et 3,685 — —
COMMEICIAl PAPET ... iiiiiiiie ittt e e s ssbeeeenes — — 963,159
Repurchase AgreEmMENTS.........ocuuieiiiiieiiiee et see e s seeee s — — 403,932
MUBUAT FUNGS. ...t 524,205 8,938,493 304,580
REAI ESTAE......oiuiiiiiiiie e 34,232 — —
VeNtUre Capital.......cocueieiiiie i e e ae e — — —
Direct MOrgage LO@NS........coouiiiiiiieiciiii ettt siaee et e e — — —
Partnership and Hedge FUNAS...........cccceiiiiiiiiec e 161,612 — —
State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR OhiIO)......ccceevcveveviieeiiininennns — — —
Collateral 0N LENt SECUITIES..........eciiiiiieiii et — — —
Employer Contributions Receivable..............ccccovviiiiiiieiiiie e, 1,320 — —
Employee Contributions Receivable..........ccccooviveiiiiiiiiie e 979 — —
Other RECEIVADIES. .......ooiiiiiii e 3,084 9,370 719
Other ASSELS. ...ttt 11 — 15
Capital ASSELS, NEBL.....ciiiiieiiie et e s neeas 58 — —
TOTAL ASSET S, ittt sttt e et e e s e neesneeeeneean 853,222 9,191,959 2,670,595
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNES PAYabIe......ccoiiiieiiiie et 696 — —
Accrued LiabilitieS. ......ccuiiiiiiiieiieer e 3,879 3,194 12
Obligations Under Securities Lending...........ccccvvvieeiiiieeiiiiesniee e — — —
Intergovernmental Payable..........ccccooiiiiiei e — — —
Refund and Other Liabilities 36 6,079 207
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...ttt e e e e a e e e s nnnnanea e e e e 4,611 9,273 219
NET POSITION (DEFICITS):
Held in Trust for:
Employees' Pension BeNefitS........cccviieeiiiiiiiiiie e 740,662 — —
Employees' Postemployment Healthcare Benefits............ 107,949 — —
Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments — 9,182,686 —
POOI PartiCIPANTS......ciiiiiieiiiee ettt ee e e e sbeeeens — — 2,670,376
TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICITS)...ccictiiiiieieeiieeeeieesee e $ 848611 $ 9,182686 $ 2,670,376

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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AGENCY

350,591
148,171

11,009,828
43,531,218
13,065,822
45,591,052
2,280,044
700,000
12,267,005
20,146,109
18,790,772
8,844,067
18,071,605
63,128
85,464

423,366

195,368,242

85,464
229,482
195,053,296

195,368,242

43



[THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

44



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

PRIVATE-
PENSION PURPOSE INVESTMENT
TRUST TRUST TRUST
STATE HIGHWAY
PATROL
RETIREMENT
SYSTEM VARIABLE
(for the fiscal year COLLEGE
ended 12/31/14) SAVINGS PLAN STAR OHIO
ADDITIONS:
Contributions from:
EMPIOYET ...ttt $ 26,650 $ — —
EMPIOYEES. ...t 10,637 — —
Plan PartiCipants..........cccceviieeeiiiiee e sinie e sneee e — 2,381,217 —
Other ... 3,877 — —
Total ContribUtioONS.........ceiiiiiiee 41,164 2,381,217 —
Investment Income:
Net Appreciation (Depreciation)
in Fair Value of Investments..........cccccovcvveviieeeiieee e, 38,058 (120,909) —
Interest, Dividends and Other............cccccveviviiieniiniecnnens 19,710 386,718 3,167
Total Investment INCOME..........coovieriiiieiies e 57,768 265,809 3,167
Less: Investment EXPeNnSe.......ccvevvveiiiiiieiiie i 6,128 37,694 1,950
Net INVestment INCOME........c.ccoiviiiiiiiie e 51,640 228,115 1,217
Capital Share and Individual Account Transactions:
Shares Sold.........ccooiiiiiiiiee e — — 11,614,997
Reinvested Distributions............ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiceceee — — 1,217
Shares Redeemed.........ccocvviviiieiiiee e — — (11,234,334)
Net Capital Share and Individual Account Transactions....... — — 381,880
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ..ottt 92,804 2,609,332 383,097
DEDUCTIONS:
Pension Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries......... 63,330 — —
Healthcare Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries..... 14,056 — —
Refunds of Employee Contributions 2,177 — —
Administrative EXPeNSe.......ccccovcvieiiieeeniiee e 1,187 — —
Transfers to Other Retirement Systems 166 — —
Distributions to Shareholders and Plan Participants............. — 2,142,009 1,217
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS.......coiiiiiiieeiee e 80,916 2,142,009 1,217
CHANGE IN NET POSITION HELD FOR:
Employees' Pension BenefitS.........cccccvveiiiieiieec e 11,694 — —
Employees' Postemployment Healthcare Benefits............... 194 — —
Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments............. — 467,323 —
POOI PartiCipants.........ccveiviiieiiiiie e — — 381,880
TOTAL CHANGE IN NET POSITION......cceiiiiiiiiienee 11,888 467,323 381,880
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated)............ 836,723 8,715,363 2,288,496
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JUNE 30.......ccccovvvveiiieeeiieeenne $ 848,611 $ 9,182,686 2.670,376

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash EqQUItY With TrEASUIET........cciiiiiiieiieiteit sttt
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments...........ccccoeeens
Collateral on Lent Securities..
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents..

Investments..
Intergovernmental Receivable
Loans Receivable, Net...............
Receivable from Primary Government
Other Receivables..
Inventories.....
Other Assets.....

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS.
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash EqUIVAIENTES...........oouiiiiiiiiiiieceee e

Investments..
Investments
Loans Receivable, Net
Other Receivables..
Other Assets
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net..
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated...

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS...oo ettt
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiii s
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES................

LIABILITIES:

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNES PAY@DIE.........ciiiiiiiiiicee e

Accrued Liabilities

Obligations Under Securities Lending.

Intergovernmental Payable

Unearned Revenue

Refund and Other Liabilities

Bonds and Notes Payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES. ...

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Intergovernmental Payable.
Unearned Revenue.............
Refund and Other Liabilities...
Payable to Primary Government..
Bonds and Notes Payable

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES..

TOTAL LIABILITIES....
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES...
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES..............

NET POSITION (DEFICITS):
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Transportation
Community and Economic Development.
Nonexpendable:
Scholarships and Fellowships..
Research...
Endowments and Quasi-Endowments..
Loans, Grants and Other College and University Purposes
Expendable:
Scholarships and Fellowships..
Research......cccoevecncinennens
Instructional Department Uses.
Student and Public Services.
Academic Support.
Debt Service....
Capital Purposes...
Endowments and Quasi-Endowments..
Current Operations...
Loans, Grants and Other College and University Purposes
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICITS)....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiicciici s

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

OHIO FACILITIES OHIO NONMAJOR
CONSTRUCTION STATE COMPONENT
COMMISSION UNIVERSITY UNITS

$ 436,424  $ — 12,320

— 645,266 1,026,827

2,207 1,258,183 2,390,082
106,388 — —

— — 136,623

— — 185,052

— 5,981 42,577

512 23,223 41,931

— 2,159 31,215

— 576,051 485,479

— 39,781 92,969

— 48,789 80,724

545,531 2,599,433 4,525,799

— 375,425 282,606

— — 2,624,599

— 3,753,490 2,354,797

1,318 47,051 150,994

— 72,623 141,601

25 — 1,767,389

35,473 4,434,053 8,421,376

11,858 449,100 1,264,353

48,674 9,131,742 17,007,715

594,205 11,731,175 21,533,514

687 227,123 257,380

594,892 11,958,298 21,790,894

2,799 341,495 298,959

109 125,383 396,196
106,388 — —

340,943 — 2,014

— 262,479 256,197

2,326 108,593 251,402

— 654,890 297,972

452,565 1,492,840 1,502,740

220,490 — 60,862

— — 13,438

5,780 2,582,799 4,017,869

— — 19,004

— 2,197,094 7,554,167

226,270 4,779,893 11,665,340

678,835 6,272,733 13,168,080

3,588,363 693,256 379,579

4,267,198 6,965,989 13,547,659

47,331 2,396,802 5,164,857

— — 244,206

— — 26,106

— — 296,181

— — 73,711

— 1,355,560 1,211,878

— — 587,765

— — 303,539

— — 157,899

— — 154,621

— — 66,306

— — 155,647

— — 22,338

— (22,728) 147,861

— 357,649 432,778

— 658,079 34,876

— — 463,193

(3,719,637) 246,947 (1,300,527)

$ (3,672,306) $ 4,992,309 8,243,235
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TOTAL

448,744
1,672,093
3,650,472

106,388

136,623
185,052
48,558
65,666
33,374
1,061,530
132,750
129,513

7,670,763

658,031
2,624,599
6,108,287

199,363

214,224
1,767,414

12,890,902
1,725,311
26,188,131

33,858,894
485,190
34,344,084

643,253
521,688
106,388
342,957
518,676
362,321
952,862

3,448,145

281,352

16,671,503
20,119,648

4,661,198
24,780,846

7,608,990

244,206
26,106

587,765

303,539

157,899
154,621
66,306
155,647
22,338
125,133
790,427
692,955
463,193

(4,773,217)

9,563,238
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

OHIO FACILITIES OHIO NONMAJOR
CONSTRUCTION STATE COMPONENT
COMMISSION UNIVERSITY UNITS
EXPENSES:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education.............c.ccccceeeveenne. $ 386,150 $ — $ —
TraNSPOITALION. ......eiiiee ettt — — 301,316
General GOVEIMMENL..........coccuiiiiieiiiieieee e 4 — —
Community and Economic Development............cccoceeveenneenne. — — 833,318
Education and General:
Instruction and Departmental Research..............cccoceeveennenne — 945,550 1,975,029
Separately Budgeted Research...........ccoceviieiiiiiieniniiecene — 455,266 361,127
PUDIIC SErVICE.......ooiiiii e — 134,882 188,199
Academic Support.. — 192,140 533,184
StUdeNt SEIVICES. ......cciiiiiiiiiieie e — 100,229 325,516
INStitUtioNal SUPPOIL.......coiiieiieiii e — 237,934 643,555
Operation and Maintenance of Plant... — 102,883 392,185
Scholarships and Fellowships. — 112,944 281,320
Auxiliary Enterprises............... — 248,879 716,925
HOSPIAIS. ... — 2,343,782 349,468
— 70,235 324,847
1,390 342,196 543,267
— — 72,695
TOTAL EXPENSES.......c.oooiiiiiiiieceeee e 387,544 5,286,920 7,841,951
PROGRAM REVENUES:
Charges for Services, Fees, Fines and Forfeitures................... 28,312 4,065,308 5,257,259
Operating Grants, Contributions
and Restricted Investment INCOMe..........cccccoeiiiiieniiiincnn, 2,677 691,209 758,581
Capital Grants, Contributions
and Restricted Investment InCOMe..........cccccoeiiiiiiniicincnn, — 1,688 27,921
TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiieies 30,989 4,758,205 6,043,761
NET PROGRAM (EXPENSE) REVENUE .........cccccooiiiiniiiiins (356,555) (528,715) (1,798,190)
GENERAL REVENUES:
Unrestricted Investment INCOME...........ccoceiiiiiininieiciiece — 173,478 46,506
State Assistance 524,181 476,692 1,424,472
OBNET ... 808 246,965 467,932
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES.........ccccoiiiiiiiiiieie e 524,989 897,135 1,938,910
ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS) TO ENDOWMENTS
AND PERMANENT FUND PRINCIPAL.......cccociniiiiiiirie — 60,792 39,402
GAIN (LOSS) ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT..........cccooueuvee. — — (1,082)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION......ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiccieeeceee e 168,434 429,212 179,040
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated)................. (3,840,740) 4,563,097 8,064,195
N